
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
 
 

Licensing Sub-
Committee 

 
 
 
Date: 
 

Monday 18 October 2021 

Time: 
 

9.30 am 

Venue: 
 

Conference Room 1, Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road, Andover, SP10 
3AJ 

 
 
For further information or enquiries please contact: 
Sally Prior - 01264 368024 
sprior@testvalley.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Legal and Democratic Service 
Test Valley Borough Council, 

Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road, 
Andover, Hampshire, 

SP10 3AJ 
www.testvalley.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

http://www.testvalley.gov.uk/


 
 

 
Membership of Licensing Sub-Committee 

 
MEMBER  WARD 
 

Councillor G Bailey Blackwater 

Councillor J Budzynski Andover St Mary's 

Councillor T Burley Andover Harroway 

 
 
 
 
In the event of a member selected becoming unavailable, the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services is authorised to select a replacement from the membership of 
the Licensing Committee. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021



 
 

 
Licensing Sub-Committee 

 
Monday 18 October 2021 

 
AGENDA 

 
The order of these items may change as a result of members 

of the public wishing to speak 
 
 
 

1   Appointment of Chairman 
 

 

2   Apologies 
 

 

3   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

4   Licensing Procedure Rules 
 

4 - 6 

 Procedure Rules for Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

5   Application for a new Premises Licence  
 

7 - 136 

 To determine an application for a new Premises Licence 
for Haydown Farm, Wiremead Lane, East Cholderton, 
Andover 
 

 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021



  

 

 Licensing Procedure Rules -  
Licensing Sub-Committee 

 
 
Application 
 
These Procedure Rules shall apply to all hearings of applications and other matters 
pursuant to the Licensing Act 2003 and subordinate legislation and any amendments 
thereto, and the Gambling Act 2005 and subordinate legislation and any 
amendments thereto. 
 
Terms of Reference of the Licensing Sub-Committee: 
 
1. Ward Members will have no involvement in the decision making process. 
 
Procedure for hearing licensing applications: 

1. The Council’s Scheme of Public Participation will not apply. 

2 At the start of the hearing the Chairman will explain the procedure to all those 
present. 

3. The Hearing shall take place in public.  The Sub-Committee may exclude the 
public from all or part of the hearing where it considers that the public interest 
in so doing outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the 
hearing, taking place in public. 

4. A party to whom notice has been given may attend the hearing and may be 
assisted or represented by a person whether or not that person is legally 
qualified. 

5. The hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the Sub-Committee. 

6. Cross-examination will not be permitted unless the Sub-Committee considers 
it is required for it to consider the representations, application or notice as the 
case may require. 

7. The Sub-Committee may impose a maximum period of time for each party to 
address the Sub-Committee. 

8. To facilitate the discussion the following procedure will be followed in all cases 
except for reviews when 8(b) shall apply and interim steps hearings for 
expedited summary reviews when 8(c) shall apply: 

 (a) (i) The Licensing Manager of the Council or their representative will 
present the facts of the application and action taken, to the Sub-
Committee. 

(ii) The Applicant or their representative may address the Sub-
Committee. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 4

ITEM 4



  

 

(iii) Other parties may address the Sub-Committee in the following 
order: 

 Responsible authorities 

 Other parties 

 (b) (i) The Licensing Manager of the Council or their representative will 
present the facts of the review, and action taken, to the Sub-
Committee. 

  (ii) The person requesting the review may address the Sub-
Committee. 

  (iii) The licence holder may address the Sub-Committee. 

  (iv) Other parties may address the Sub-Committee in the following 
order: 

 Responsible authorities 

 Other parties 

(c) (i) The Licensing Manager of the Council or his representative will 
present the facts giving rise to the review, and will outline any 
action taken, to the Sub-Committee. 

(ii) The Police officer requesting the review or his representative 
may address the Sub-Committee. 

(iii) The licence holder or their representative may address the Sub-
Committee. 

9. The Sub-Committee may permit the applicant or any party to question any 
other party. 

10. The members of the Sub-Committee may ask any questions of the Licensing 
Manager or their representative, or of any party or other person appearing at 
the hearing. 

11. Documentary or other evidence may be produced at the hearing with the 
consent of all the parties. 

12. Where a party fails to attend or be represented and the Sub-Committee 
considers it necessary in the public interest it may adjourn the hearing to a 
specified date or hold the hearing in a party’s absence. 

13. The Sub-Committee may require any person attending the hearing who in 
their opinion is behaving in a disruptive manner to leave the hearing and 
refuse to permit that person to return or permit them to return only on such 
conditions as the Sub-Committee may specify.  Any such person may submit 
to the Sub-Committee in writing before the end of the hearing any information 
which they would have been entitled to give orally had they not been required 
to leave. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 5



  

 

 

14. The Sub-Committee may ask questions of its legal adviser. 

15. The Sub-Committee will deliberate in private. 

16. The Sub-Committee may request advice in private of its legal adviser 
regarding the drafting of reasons. 

17. In the case of a hearing under the sections and circumstances set out in 
Regulation 26(1) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 (or 
any amending legislation), the Sub-Committee will make its determination at 
the conclusion of the hearing. 

In any other case, the Sub-Committee will make its determination either at the 
conclusion of the hearing or within the period of five working days beginning 
with the day or the last day on which the hearing was held. 

18. A record of the hearing will be taken in a permanent and intelligible form. 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 6



 Application for a new Premises Licence – Haydown 
Farm, Wiremead Lane, East Cholderton, Andover 

SP11 8LR 

1 The application 

1.1 The application is by Breach Farm Brewing Limited for a Premises Licence in 
respect of premises at Haydown Farm, Wiremead Lane, East Cholderton, 
Andover SP11 8LR. The application as originally submitted seeks sale of 
alcohol for consumption both on and off the premises from Sunday to 
Wednesday 1100 to 2100 hours daily, Thursday/Friday/Saturday 1100 to 
2300 hours daily, Bank Holidays, Burns Night and the 12 days prior to 
Christmas Day 1100 to 2300 hours, and New Year’s Eve 1100 to 0030 hours. 

1.2 The application has attracted representations objecting to the application 
which necessitates it being determined at a hearing. A copy of the application 
is attached as Annex 1 to this report. Following closure of the 28-day period 
for receipt of representations the applicants submitted further information 
revising aspects of their application which are set out in Annex 2 to this report. 

2 Background 

2.1 The premises comprise a farm building which is being repaired to house the 
brewery business. The building will have four sections used for dry storage, 
the brewhouse and fermentation tanks, cold storage and the tasting area and 
the fourth will offer additional seating and a small meeting space. 

3 Promotion of the Licensing Objectives 

3.1 The applicant makes the following comments in relation to the steps taken to 
promote the four licensing objectives. These comments are taken directly as 
entered in the application: 

a) General – we recognise, and state our commitment as a business to 
upholding, the four licensing objectives: preventing crime and disorder; 
ensuring the safety of the public; the prevention of public nuisance; the 
protection of children from harm. 

 
The three founding members of the business have training and experience 
in public facing roles within the brewing and retail sectors and hold 
Personal Licences themselves. All staff employed within the business will 
be provided with appropriate training and mentoring in the promotion of the 
four licensing objectives. 
 
The locally brewed craft beer on sale for consumption on the premises will 
be offered primarily in a range of small measures of 1/3rd, ½, and 2/3rd 
pints, with a strong emphasis on the “tasting” aspect. We will discourage 
binge drinking.  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 7

ITEM 5



The whole ethos of the establishment will be the encouragement of 
responsible drinking and the appreciation of a quality hand crafted product 
and the subtle differences that can distinguish various beers  

We will aim to attract and encourage customers who share our views on 
the social benefits of responsible beer drinking in a safe relaxed and 
friendly environment. We will not encourage irresponsible or excessive 
consumption. We will not serve anyone who is drunk or appears to be 
drunk.  

We will actively avoid serving alcohol to underage children.  

A challenge 25 policy will be in force, where any person looking under the 
age of 25 will be asked to prove their age when attempting to purchase 
alcohol. Challenge 25 posters will be displayed  

An incident/refusal log will be kept at the premises and be available for 
inspection on request by an appropriate officer of the council or a police 
officer. This log will record the following: a) All crimes reported at the 
venue b) Any complaints received c) Any faults in the CCTV system d) Any 
refusal of the sale of alcohol e) any visit by a relevant authority. 

b) The prevention of crime and disorder – we will have a zero-tolerance 
policy with regard to drugs. We will discourage drink driving. Whilst the 
venue will have car parking available, it will also have facilities for the 
storage of bicycles. The venue is located well off the highway and is easily 
accessible by a network of public rights of way from the nearby villages of 
Amport, Monxton and East Cholderton, so we will encourage customers to 
walk to the premises.  

We will not serve alcohol to anyone who is drunk or appears to be drunk. 
We will keep a record of any incidents where we have to refuse to serve 
someone.  

We will train and mentor all staff to be alert for these dangers, and have 
procedures in place to deal with them  

All goods subject to duty payments i.e., alcohol, if not produced on site, 
will be purchased from bona fide suppliers only, and detailed invoices will 
be available upon request. No alcoholic drinks or tobacco will be 
purchased from unannounced sellers calling at the premises. 

CCTV cameras and recorders will be installed at the premises, and these 
will be: of a standard acceptable to and approved by the police; the system 
will be maintained in good working order and at all times the premise is 
open to the public, be fully operational covering both internal and external 
areas of the premises; at least one CCTV camera is to be placed near to 
the exit in order to capture clear facial images of all patrons leaving the 
premises; a suitably trained staff member will be able to provide police or 
council licensing officers recent CCTV footage with minimum delay when 
requested.  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 8



 

An incident/refusal log will be kept at the premises and be available for 
inspection on request by council licensing officers or the police. This log 
will record the following: a) all crimes reported at the venue b) any 
complaints received c) any faults in the CCTV system d) any refusal of the 
sale of alcohol e) any visit by a relevant authority. 

c) Public safety – we wish to be a venue where customers can relax and be 
safe, and where we can avoid anyone hurting themselves. We want staff 
to feel and be safe too.  
1. Installation of appropriate safety equipment  
2. Fire exit signs displayed  
3. To comply with all current fire, health and safety laws  
4. CCTV working at all times. 

d) The prevention of public nuisance – the project to establish a craft brewery 
at Haydown Farm has received a substantial amount of support from local 
residents.  

The whole ethos of the establishment will be the encouragement of 
responsible drinking in a safe, relaxed, friendly, and respectful 
environment. That respect extends to ensuring that we do not cause 
nuisance to the public. Customers will be asked to leave quietly and not to 
disturb the local neighbourhood.  

The venue is located well off the highway, with no residential properties 
nearby except Haydown Farmhouse itself. We will encourage customers 
to walk or cycle to the premises where possible via the network of public 
rights of way from the nearby villages of Amport, Monxton and East 
Cholderton to minimise vehicular traffic.  

The venue will be open for very restricted hours. As a small operation we 
will not initially have sufficient resources, or desire, to be open more that 3, 
4 or 5 days a week. Whilst we have specified an operating schedule for all 
seven days of the week, as a small enterprise we will not initially have 
sufficient resources, or desire, to be open more than 4 or 5 days a week. 
But we need the flexibility of a 7 day schedule to enable us to experiment 
with different days / times so we can identify the best operating schedule 
for the business and our customers in the early stages and develop the 
business. 

e) The protection of children from harm – we will actively avoid serving 
alcohol to underage children. A challenge 25 policy will be in force, where 
any person looking under the age of 25 will be asked to prove their age 
when attempting to purchase alcohol. Challenge 25 posters will be 
displayed. All staff employed within the business will be trained and 
mentored to be alert to the dangers for children, and the prevention of 
underage drinking. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 9



The measures to promote the licensing objectives are of relevance when 
considering the representations received. As mentioned in paragraph 1.2 
above the applicants have subsequently submitted revised information and 
this includes revisions to some of the above comments. These are set out 
in Annex 3 to the report.  

4 Relevant Representations – Responsible Authorities 

4.1 Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service – does not wish to make any 
representations. 

4.2 TVBC Housing and Environmental Health – the Environmental Protection 
Team has no representations to make. 

4.3 TVBC Planning and Building Service – has no objections or concerns about 
this application. The Service has had previous correspondence with the 
applicant regarding whether planning permission would be required, however 
it would be considered Permitted Development under Class R, Part 3, 
Schedule 2 of the General Permitted Development Order. 

5 Relevant Representations – Other Persons 

5.1 A total of 40 representations were originally received from other persons 
objecting to the application. Four of these objections were withdrawn following 
the submission of the additional information from the applicants leaving a total 
of 36 objections which appear in Annex 4 to this report. It should be noted that 
several objections refer to the impact upon wildlife and animals. These 
comments should be disregarded as public nuisance is an act that is illegal 
because it interferes with the rights of the public generally; as local wildlife 
cannot be classed as the public any comments relating to the impact on flora 
and fauna are not relevant and should not be considered. 

5.2 In addition, 29 representations were received in support of the application and 
these appear in Annex 5 to this report. It should be noted that a number of the 
supporting representations are from persons that do not live within the local 
area. Whilst this does not invalidate them, the Sub-Committee will need to 
consider how much weight it should attached to such representations. 

6 Policy Considerations 

6.1 The representations raise concerns relating to aspects of all four licensing 
objectives although the primary concern is in respect of the objective of public 
safety. It is therefore considered that the following extracts from the guidance 
issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
(April 2018 edition) are relevant. 

 
2.1-2.6 – Crime and disorder 
2.7-2.9 – Public safety 
2.15-2.21 – Public nuisance 
8.41-8.49 – Steps to promote the licensing objectives 
9.1, 9.3, 9.11-9.12, 9.31-9.44 – Determining applications 
10.1-10.10, 10.13-10.15, 10.61-10.66 – Conditions 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 10



A copy of the Secretary of State’s Guidance will be provided at the meeting 
for Members of the Sub Committee. Additional copies can be obtained from 
the GOV.UK website. 

6.2 It is considered that the following extracts from the Licensing Authority’s own 
Statement of Licensing Policy are relevant to this application: 

Section A: Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

Section B: Public Safety 

Section C: Prevention of Public Nuisance 

The Statement of Licensing Policy has either previously been provided for 
Members of the Sub Committee or will be provided at the hearing. Copies can 
also be obtained from the Licensing Section of the Legal and Democratic 
Service or downloaded from the Council’s website. 

7 Observations 

7.1 The Committee is obliged to determine this application with a view to 
promoting the four licensing objectives of prevention of crime and disorder, 
public safety, prevention of public nuisance and the protection of children from 
harm. In making its decision, the Committee is also obliged to have regard to 
the national Guidance and the Council’s own Statement of Licensing Policy. 
The Committee must also have regard to all of the representations made and 
the evidence it hears. The Committee must take such of the following steps as 
it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives: 

a) Grant the application as requested 

b) Modify the conditions of the licence, by altering or omitting or adding to 
them. (The Committee may where appropriate attach different conditions 
to different parts of the premises concerned and/or to different licensable 
activities). 

c) Reject the whole or part of the application (for example by allowing only 
some of the licensable activities or permitting them to take place at times 
other than those requested). 

The Committee is asked to note that it may not modify the conditions or reject 
the whole or part of the application merely because it considers it desirable to 
do so. It must actually be appropriate in order to promote one or more of the 
four licensing objectives: 

a. Prevention of crime and disorder 

b. Public safety 

c. Prevention of public nuisance 

d. Protection of children from harm 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 11



 

Background Papers (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D) 
Premises Licence application for Haydown Farm, Wiremead Lane, East Cholderton, 
Andover 

Confidentiality   

It is considered that this report does not contain exempt information within the 
meaning of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, and can 
be made public. 

No of Annexes: 5 

Author: Michael White Ext: 8013 

File Ref: n/a 

Report to: Licensing Sub-Committee Date: 18 October 2021 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 12



 Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 
 
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.  If you 
are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals.  In all cases 
ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink.  Use additional 
sheets if necessary. 
 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 
 

I/We   BREACH FARM BREWING LTD    

         (Insert name(s) of applicant)  
apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the 
premises described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this 
application to you as the relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 
of the Licensing Act 2003 
 
Part 1 – Premises details 
  

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 
Annex to Main Grain Store, 
Haydown Farm  
Wiremead Lane 
East Cholderton   

Post 
town 

ANDOVER Postcode  SP11 8LR   

 

Telephone number at premises (if 
any) 

     none at present   

Non-domestic rateable value of 
premises 

£   to be assessed   

 
Part 2 - Applicant details 
 
Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as        Please tick as 
appropriate 

 

a) an individual or individuals *  please complete section (A) 

b) a person other than an individual *   

 i as a limited company/limited liability 
partnership 

 please complete section (B) 

 ii as a partnership (other than limited 
liability) 

 please complete section (B) 

 iii as an unincorporated association or  please complete section (B) 

 iv other (for example a statutory 
corporation) 

 please complete section (B) 

c) a recognised club  please complete section (B) 

d) a charity  please complete section (B) 

ANNEX 1
Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 13



e) the proprietor of an educational 
establishment 

 please complete section (B) 

f) a health service body  please complete section (B) 

g) 
 
 
 
ga) 
 

a person who is registered under Part 2 of 
the Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect 
of an independent hospital in Wales 
 
a person who is registered under Chapter 2 
of Part 1 of the Health and Social Care Act 
2008 (within the meaning of that Part) in an 
independent hospital in England 
 

 
 
 
 

 

please complete section (B) 
 
 
 
please complete section (B) 

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in 
England and Wales 

 please complete section (B) 

 

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to 
one box below): 

 

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the 
premises for licensable activities; or 

 

I am making the application pursuant to a  

 statutory function or  

 a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative  

 
(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable) 
 

Mr  
 

Mrs  
 

Miss  
 

Ms  
 

Other Title (for 
example, Rev) 

      
 

Surname 
      

First names 
      

Date of birth       
I am 18 years old or over  

 
Please tick yes 

Nationality        

Current residential 
address if different 
from premises 
address 

      

Post town       Postcode       

Daytime contact telephone 
number 

      

E-mail address 
(optional) 

      

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to 
work checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service 
(please see note 15 for information) 
 
           

 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 14



SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable) 
 

Mr  
 

Mrs  
 

Miss  
 

Ms  
 

Other Title (for 
example, Rev) 

      
 

Surname 
      

First names 
      

Date of birth                                 I am 18 years old or 
over 

 Please tick yes 

Nationality        

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to 
work checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service: 
(please see note 15 for information) 
 
           
 

Current residential 
address if different 
from premises 
address 

      

Post town       Postcode       

Daytime contact telephone 
number 

      

E-mail address 
(optional) 

      

 
 
(B) OTHER APPLICANTS 
 
Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full.  Where 
appropriate please give any registered number.  In the case of a partnership or 
other joint venture (other than a body corporate), please give the name and 
address of each party concerned. 
 

Name 
   BREACH FARM BREWING LTD   

Address 
  St Johns Croft 
   Castle  Road 
   Farley Hill 
   READING 
   Berkshire 
   RG7 1UL    

Registered number (where applicable) 
  12545435    

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association 
etc.) 
   Limited Liability Company 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 15



Telephone number (if any) 
 

E-mail address (optional)   
 

 
Part 3 Operating Schedule 

When do you want the premises licence to start? 
DD MM YYYY 

 0
3 

   0
9 

     2
0 

 2
1 

  

 

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, 
when do you want it to end? 

DD MM YYYY 

                
 

 

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1) 

  A redundant farm building at Haydown Farm, Wiremead Lane, East 
Cholderton, is being repaired and converted to house the brewery business. 
The building is attached to one side of a modern grain store. The entire space 
to be used by Breach Farm Brewing Ltd (BFB Ltd) is 6m deep and 24m wide 
(144 sqm). The building will have four sections each approximately 6m x 6m. 
The first will be used mainly for dry storage. The second will hold the 
brewhouse and fermentation tanks. The third will be for cold storage, tasting 
area and small café. The fourth will offer additional seating and a small event 
space available for community use. 
 
BFB Ltd is purposely small-scale, focusing on quality over quantity. Each beer 
is hand made using the best natural ingredients, locally sourced whenever 
possible. Brewing on such an extremely small scale is expensive and requires 
us to educate and sell directly to the consumer.   

Initially it is desired that the small café and tasting room be open four days 
each week. Proposed hours are Thursday 4-8pm, Friday 4-9pm, Saturday 
Noon-9pm, Sunday 1-6pm. In addition to beer and wine, the small café will 
offer coffee, tea, soft drinks, and locally sourced, pre-packaged snacks / 
sandwiches.  

The café could also be available for local groups to operate for fundraising 
and community events, when not in use by BFB Ltd.    

 

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at 
any one time, please state the number expected to attend. 

      
 

 
What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises? 
(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003) 
 

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2) 
Please tick all that 
apply 

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)  

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)  

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 16



d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)  

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)  

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)  

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)  

h) 
anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) 
(if ticking yes, fill in box H) 

 

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)  

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)  

 
In all cases complete boxes K, L and M  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 17



A 
 

Plays 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of a play take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 3) 
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon     
  

    
  

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

    
  

    
  

Tue     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Wed     
  

    
  

State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please 
read guidance note 5) 
          

  
    
  

Thur     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Fri     
  

    
  

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for the performance of plays at different times to 
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please 
read guidance note 6) 
      

    
  

    
  

Sat     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Sun     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 18



B 
 

Films 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the exhibition of films take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 3) 
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon     
  

    
  

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

    
  

    
  

Tue     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Wed     
  

    
  

State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films 
(please read guidance note 5) 
          

  
    
  

Thur     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Fri     
  

    
  

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for the exhibition of films at different times to 
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please 
read guidance note 6) 
      

    
  

    
  

Sat     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Sun     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 19



C 
 

Indoor sporting 
events 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Please give further details (please read guidance note 4) 
      

Day Start Finish 

Mon     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Tue     
  

    
  

State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events 
(please read guidance note 5) 
          

  
    
  

Wed     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Thur     
  

    
  

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for indoor sporting events at different times to 
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please 
read guidance note 6) 
      

    
  

    
  

Fri     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Sat     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Sun     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 20



D 
 

Boxing or wrestling 
entertainments 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 
 

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment 
take place indoors or outdoors or both – 
please tick (please read guidance note 3) 
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon     
  

    
  

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

    
  

    
  

Tue     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Wed     
  

    
  

State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling 
entertainment (please read guidance note 5) 
          

  
    
  

Thur     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Fri     
  

    
  

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for boxing or wrestling entertainment at different 
times to those listed in the column on the left, please list 
(please read guidance note 6) 
      

    
  

    
  

Sat     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Sun     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 21



E 
 

Live music 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of live music take 
place indoors or outdoors or both – 
please tick (please read guidance note 3) 
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  x 

Mon     
  

    
  

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
 

    
  

    
  

Tue     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Wed     
  

    
  

State any seasonal variations for the performance of live 
music (please read guidance note 5) 
          

  
    
  

Thur     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Fri     
  

     
Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for the performance of live music at different 
times to those listed in the column on the left, please list 
(please read guidance note 6) 
      

    
  

    
  

Sat 
     

    
  

    
  

    
  

Sun     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 22



F 
 

Recorded music 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the playing of recorded music take 
place indoors or outdoors or both – 
please tick (please read guidance note 3) 
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon     
  

    
  

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

    
  

    
  

Tue     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Wed     
  

    
  

State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded 
music (please read guidance note 5) 
          

  
    
  

Thur     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Fri     
  

    
  

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for the playing of recorded music at different 
times to those listed in the column on the left, please list 
(please read guidance note 6) 
 

    
  

    
  

Sat     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Sun     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 23



G 
 

Performances of 
dance 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 
 

Will the performance of dance take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 3) 
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon     
  

    
  

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

    
  

    
  

Tue     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Wed     
  

    
  

State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance 
(please read guidance note 5) 
          

  
    
  

Thur     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Fri     
  

    
  

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for the performance of dance at different times to 
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please 
read guidance note 6) 
      

    
  

    
  

Sat     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Sun     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 24



H 
 

Anything of a similar 
description to that 
falling within (e), (f) 
or (g) 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will 
be providing 
      

Day Start Finish Will this entertainment take place indoors 
or outdoors or both – please tick (please 
read guidance note 3) 

Indoors  

Mon     
  

    
  

Outdoors  

    
  

    
  

Both  

Tue     
  

    
  

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

    
  

    
  

Wed     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Thur     
  

    
  

State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar 
description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  (please read 
guidance note 5) 
      

    
  

    
  

Fri     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Sat     
  

    
  

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for the entertainment of a similar description to 
that falling within (e), (f) or (g) at different times to those 
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read 
guidance note 6) 
      

    
  

    
  

Sun     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 25



 I 
 

Late night 
refreshment 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 
 

Will the provision of late night 
refreshment take place indoors or 
outdoors or both – please tick (please 
read guidance note 3) 
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon     
  

    
  

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

    
  

    
  

Tue     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Wed     
  

    
  

State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night 
refreshment (please read guidance note 5) 
          

  
    
  

Thur     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Fri     
  

    
  

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for the provision of late night refreshment at 
different times, to those listed in the column on the left, 
please list (please read guidance note 6) 
      

    
  

    
  

Sat     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Sun     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 26



J 
 

Supply of alcohol 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the supply of alcohol be for 
consumption – please tick (please read 
guidance note 8) 
 

On the 
premises 

 

Off the 
premises 

 

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon   State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol 
(please read guidance note 5) 
Every day 12 days prior to Christmas Day 11.00 to 23.00 11.00 21.00 

Tue 11.00 21.00 

    
  

    
  

Wed 11.00  

    
  

21.00 

Thur 11.00 23.00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 
premises for the supply of alcohol at different times to 
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please 
read guidance note 6) 
Bank Holidays (excluding Christmas Day) 11.00 to 23.00 
New Years Eve 11.00 to 00.30 
Burns Night 11.00 to 23.00 
Every day 12 days prior to Christmas Day 11.00 to 23.00 
 

    
  

    
  

Fri 11.00 23.00 

    
  

    
  

Sat 11.00 23.00 

    
  

    
  

Sun 11.00 21.00 

    
  

    
  

 
State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the 
licence as designated premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the 
entitlement to work in the checklist at the end of the form): 
 

Name  

Date of birth  

Address 
 

Postcode  

Personal licence number (if known) 

BDB19/00722/PERS_N  

Issuing licensing authority (if known) 
 Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council     

 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 27



K 
 

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment 
or matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in 
respect of children (please read guidance note 9). 
 
 
None.  It is not our intention to provide any adult-specific entertainment or 
services, activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the 
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children 

 

L 
 

Hours premises are 
open to the public 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 
 

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5) 
Every day 12 days prior to Christmas Day 11.00 to 23.00 
 

 

These are the hours the cafe may open. 
Times for serving alcohol are given in section J  
 

 
 
 

Day Start Finish 

Mon 09.00 22.00 

    
  

    
  

Tue 09.00 22.00 

    
  

    
  

Wed 09.00 22.00 

    
  

    
  

Non standard timings.  Where you intend the premises to 
be open to the public at different times from those listed in 
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 
6) 
Bank Holidays (excluding Christmas Day) 11.00 to 23.00 
New Years Eve 11.00 to 00.30 
Burns Night 11.00 to 23.00 
Every day 12 days prior to Christmas Day 11.00 to 23.00 

Thur 09.00 23.00 

    
  

    
  

Fri 09.00 23.00 

    
  

    
  

Sat 09.00 23.00 

    
  

    
  

Sun 10.00 21.00 

    
  

    
  

 
M  

 
Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives: 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 28



a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 
10) 

We recognise, and state our commitment as a business to upholding, the four licensing 
objectives:-.  
                    preventing crime and disorder 
                    ensuring the safety of the public 
                    the prevention of public nuisance 
                    the protection of children from harm 
 
The three founding members of the business have training and experience in public 
facing roles within the brewing and retail sectors, and hold Personal Licences 
themselves.  
All staff employed within the business will be provided with appropriate training and 
mentoring in the promotion of the four licensing objectives  
 
The locally brewed craft beer on sale for consumption on the premises  will be offered 
primarily in a range of small measures of 1/3rd, ½, and 2/3rd pints, with a strong 
emphasis on the “tasting” aspect. We will discourage binge drinking.  
 
The whole ethos of the establishment will be the encouragement of responsible drinking 
and the appreciation of a quality hand crafted product and the subtle differences that can 
distinguish various beers 
 
We will aim to attract and encourage customers who share our views on the social 
benefits of responsible beer drinking in a safe relaxed and friendly environment. We will 
not encourage irresponsible or excessive consumption. We will not serve anyone who is 
drunk or appears to be drunk.  
 

We will actively avoid serving alcohol to underage children.  
A challenge 25 policy will be in force, where any person looking under the age of 25 will 
be asked to prove their age when attempting to purchase alcohol. Challenge 25 posters 
will be displayed 

 
An incident/refusal log will be kept at the premises, and be available for inspection on 
request by an appropriate officer of the council or a police officer.  
This log will record the following;  
a) All crimes reported at the venue  
b) Any complaints received,  
c) Any faults in the CCTV system  
d) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol, 
e) any visit by a relevant authority 

 
b) The prevention of crime and disorder 

 We will have a zero tolerance policy with regard to drugs 
 
We will discourage drink driving. Whilst the venue will have car parking available, it will 
also have facilicities for the storage of bicycles. The venue is located well off the highway, 
and is easily accessible by a network of public rights of way from the nearby villages of 
Amport, Monxton and East Cholderto, so we will encourage customers to walk to the 
premises.  
 
We will not serve alcohol to anyone who is drunk or appears to be drunk.. We will keep a 
record of any incidents where we have to refuse to serve someone.  
 
We will train and mentor all staff to be alert for these dangers, and have procedures in 
place to deal with them   
 
All goods subject to duty payments i.e. alcohol, if not produceded on site, will be 
purchased from bona fide suppliers only,  and detailed invoices will be available upon 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 29



request. No alcoholic drinks or tobacco will be purchased from unannounced sellers 
calling at the premises 
 
CCTV cameras and recorders will be installed at the premises, and these will be: 

 of a standard acceptable to and approved by the police  

 the system will be maintained in good working order and at all times the premise 
is open to the public, be fully operational covering both internal and external 
areas of the premises  

 at least one CCTV camera is to be placed near to the exit in order to capture 
clear facial images of all patrons leaving the premises  

 

 a suitably trained staff member will be able to provide police or council licensing 
officers recent CCTV  footage with minimum delay when requested. 

 
An incident/refusal log will be kept at the premises, and be available for inspection on 
request by council licensing officers or the police.  
This log will record the following;  
a) all crimes reported at the venue  
b) any complaints received,  
c) any faults in the CCTV system  
d) any refusal of the sale of alcohol, 
e) any visit by a relevant authority 
 
 

 
c) Public safety 

We wish to be a venue where customers can relax and be safe, and where we can avoid 
anyone hurting themselves. We want staff to feel, and be safe too. 
 
1. Installation of appropriate safety equipment  
2. Fire exit signs displayed  
3. To comply with all current fire, health and safety laws  
4. CCTV working at all times   

 
d) The prevention of public nuisance 

 

The project to establish a craft brewery at Haydown Farm has received a substantial 
amount of support from local residents (please see attached file of supporting letters) 
 
The whole ethos of the establishment will be the encouragement of responsible drinking 
in a safe, relaxed, friendly, and respectful environment. That respect extends to ensuring 
that we do not cause nuisance to the public. Customers will be asked to leave quietly and 
not to disturb the local neighborhood . 
 

The venue is located well off the highway, with no residential properties nearby except 
Haydown Farmhouse itself. We will encourage customers to walk or cycle to the 
premises where possible via the network of public rights of way from the nearby villages 
of Amport, Monxton and East Cholderton to minimise vehicular traffic.  
 

The venue will be open for very restricted hours. As a small operation we will not initially 
have sufficient resources, or desire, to be open more that 3, 4 or 5 days a week. Whilst 
we  have specified an operating schedule for all seven days of the week, as a small 
enterprise we will not initially have sufficient resources, or desire, to be open more than 4 
or 5 days a week. But we need the flexibility of a 7 day schedule to enable us to 
experiment with different days / times so we can identify the best operating schedule for 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 30



the business and our customers in the early stages, and develop the business.  
 

 

 
 

 
e) The protection of children from harm 

We will actively avoid serving alcohol to underage children. 
  
A challenge 25 policy will be in force, where any person looking under the age of 25 will 
be asked to prove their age when attempting to purchase alcohol.  
 
Challenge 25 posters will be displayed 
 

All staff employed within the business will be trained and mentored to be alert to the 
dangers for children, and the prevention of underage drinking.    

Checklist: 

Please tick to indicate agreement 

 
 

 
I have made or enclosed payment of the fee. 

 
 

 I have enclosed the plan of the premises.  

 I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities 
and others where applicable. 

 

 I have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be 
designated premises supervisor, if applicable. 

 

 I understand that I must now advertise my application.  

 
 
 

I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application 
will be rejected. 
[Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is 
not a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability 
partnerships] I have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work 
in the United Kingdom or my share code issued by the Home Office online 
right to work checking service (please read note 15). 

 
 
 
 

 

    
IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE 
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE 
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION 
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.   
 
IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A 
PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO 
BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF 
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE 
OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO 
A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, ASYLUM AND 
NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, 
WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, 
OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE IS 
DISQUALIFIED.  
 
Part 4 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 11) 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 31



Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see 
guidance note 12).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what 
capacity.  
 

Declaration 

 [Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a 
partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] I 
understand I am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not 
have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I am subject 
to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the 
carrying on of a licensable activity) and that my licence will 
become invalid if I cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK 
(please read guidance note 15). 

 The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the 
UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from 
doing work relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a 
copy of his or her proof of entitlement to work, or have conducted 
an online right to work check using the Home Office online right 
to work checking service which confirmed their right to work 
(please see note 15) 

Signature D R HAMER 

Date 5 August 2021   

Capacity  Director - Breach Farm Brewing Ltd     

 
For joint applications, signature of 2

nd
 applicant or 2

nd
 applicant’s solicitor or other 

authorised agent (please read guidance note 13).  If signing on behalf of the 
applicant, please state in what capacity. 
 

Signature  

Date       

Capacity       

 

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence 
associated with this application (please read guidance note 14) 
 

Post town  Postcode  

Telephone number (if any)  

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional) 
 

 
Notes for Guidance 
 
1 Describe the premises, for example the type of premises, its general situation and 

layout and any other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. 
Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a 
place for consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where 
the place will be and its proximity to the premises. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 32



2 In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:  

 Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any 
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 

 Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community 
premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does 
not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening from a 
person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such 
screening abides by age classification ratings. 

 Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 
and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.     

 Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment:  no licence is required for a contest, exhibition 
or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 
23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000. Combined 
fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines 
boxing or wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or 
wrestling entertainment rather than an indoor sporting event. 

 Live music: no licence permission is required for: 
o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 

day, on any premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day 

on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises, 
provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, 
in a workplace that is not licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided 
that the audience does not exceed 500.  

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, 
in a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community 
premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol, provided 
that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets 
consent for the performance from a person who is responsible for the 
premises. 

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, 
at the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a 
hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the 
organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) 
the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider 
for the hospital. 

 Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for: 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on 

premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises, 
provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a 
church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community premises, 
that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol, provided that (a) the 
audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the 
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the 
non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a 
hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the 
organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) 
the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health 
care provider for the hospital. 

 Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance 
which amounts to adult entertainment remains licensable. 

 Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on 
any day, with no limit on audience size for:    
o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where 

the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local authority;  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 33



o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care 
provider where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health 
care provider;  

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the 
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and 

o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) 
taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a 
moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and (b) that the 
travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 
consecutive days.                                                              

3 Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors 
may include a tent). 

4 For example the type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give 
relevant further details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be 
amplified or unamplified. 

5 For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days 
during the summer months. 

6 For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a 
particular day e.g. Christmas Eve. 

7 Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16.00) and only give details for the days of 
the week when you intend the premises to be used for the activity. 

8 If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick ‘on the 
premises’.  If you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from 
the premises, please tick ‘off the premises’.  If you wish people to be able to do both, 
please tick ‘both’. 

9 Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary 
to the use of the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children, 
regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for 
example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups or 
the presence of gaming machines. 

10 Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together. 
11 The application form must be signed. 
12 An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided 

that they have actual authority to do so. 
13 Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their respective 

agent must sign the application form. 
14 This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application. 

 
15. Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and 
applications from partnerships which are not limited liability partnerships: 

 
A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is 
resident in the UK who:  

 does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or  

 is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the 
carrying on of a licensable activity.  

 
Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 
will become invalid if the holder ceases to be entitled to work in the UK. 
 
Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not 
subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a 
licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing with this application 
copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be 
certified), or 2) by providing their ‘share code’ to enable the licensing authority to carry 
out a check using the Home Office online right to work checking service (see below). 

Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 34



 An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport 

as the child of the holder, is a British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having 

the right of abode in the UK [please see note below about which sections of the 

passport to copy]. 

 

 An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a 

person named in the passport as the child of the holder, is a national of a European 

Economic Area country or Switzerland. 

 

 A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the 

Home Office to a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland. 

 

 A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a 

national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland. 

 

 A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by 

the Home Office to the holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay 

indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK. 

 

 A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration 

control, is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or 

has no time limit on their stay in the UK. 

 

 A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with 

an endorsement indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the 

UK or has no time limit on their stay in the UK, when produced in combination with 

an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and 

their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer. 

 

 A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination with 

an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and 

their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer. 

 

 A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland 

when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s 

permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government 

agency or a previous employer. 

 

 A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in 

combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National 

Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous 

employer. 

 

 A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and 

is currently allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder 

from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. 

 

 A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by 

the Home Office to the holder which indicates that the named person can currently 

stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to the carrying on of a licensable 

activity. 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 35



 A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a 

national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family 

member of such a national or who has derivative rights or residence. 

  

 A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home 

Office to the holder with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay 

in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the 

holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity when 

produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent 

National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a 

previous employer. 

 

 A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office 

under regulation 18(3) or 20(2) of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 

2016, to a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or 

Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights 

of residence.  

 

 Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their 

permission to be in the UK with the Home Office such as the Home Office 

acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or reasonable evidence that 

the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration 

decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number. 

 

 Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic 

Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has 

derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in the UK including:  

o evidence of the applicant’s own identity – such as a passport,  
o evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family 

member – e.g. a marriage certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth 
certificate, and 

o evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of 
permanent residence in the UK or is one of the following if they have 
been in the UK for more than 3 months: 

i working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer, 
ii self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank, 
iii studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of 

sufficient funds; or 
iv self-sufficient e.g. bank statements. 

 
Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially 
independent must also provide evidence that the European Economic Area national and 
any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the UK. This can include 
a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form. 
 
Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied 
is a passport, a copy of the following pages should be provided: 
 
(i)   any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality; 
(ii)  any page containing the holder’s photograph; 
(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature; 
(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and 
(v)  any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or 
remain in the UK and is permitted to work. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 36



If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided. 
 
Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could 
involve us checking your immigration status with the Home Office. We may otherwise 
share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be determined 
until you have complied with this guidance.  
 
Home Office online right to work checking service 
 
As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may 
demonstrate their right to work by allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check 
with the Home Office online right to work checking service.  
 
To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking 
service, applicants should include in this application their 9-digit share code (provided to 
them upon accessing the service at https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-to-work) which, along 
with the applicant’s date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing 
authority to carry out the check.  
 
In order to establish the applicant’s right to work, the check will need to indicate that the 
applicant is allowed to work in the United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition 
preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. 
 
An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will 
have an immigration status that can be checked online. The Home Office online right to 
work checking service sets out what information and/or documentation applicants will 
need in order to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code 
from the service should submit copy documents as set out above.  

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 37

https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-to-work


ANNEX 2 

1.Operating Hours 

We propose the application be amended to: 

 introduce very reduced operating hours for on and off sales, 

 eliminate all seasonal variations in operating hours, 

 restrict some operating hours to off sales only, 

 clarify that there are no requests for special events or seasonal variations. 

Our original application was for a total of 76 standard hours per week for on sales. 

Our proposals now reduce this to a total of 23 hours only for on sales and identify a 
further 26 hours for off sales only. 

We anticipate starting slowly and taking time for the business to develop. Selling our 
product requires an educated/informed customer. For that reason, we must take 
every opportunity to tell our story and sell our product. Tasting room hours are 
important as are any ‘chance’ opportunities to speak to customers. For that reason, 
we wish to welcome anyone walking by to pop in while the brewery is manned for 
standard operations. (1100 – 1600 Mon – Fri and 1100 – 1200 Sat.) These hours will 
also allow for collections.  

ON SALES & OFF SALES 

Monday nil 

Tuesday nil 

Wednesday nil 

Thursday 16.00 to 20.00 

Friday 16.00 to 21.00 

Saturday 12.00 to 21.00 

Sunday 13.00 to 18.00 

OFF SALES ONLY 

Monday 11.00 to 16.00 

Tuesday 11.00 to 16.00 

Wednesday 11.00 to 16.00 

Thursday 11.00 to 16.00 

Friday 11.00 to 16.00 

Saturday 11.00 to 12.00 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 38



Sunday nil 

2. Live Music 

We are happy to clarify that this application does not relate to a licence for the 
provision of either live or recorded music. 

There were no timings specified for live music at all in the original application under 
Section E, but an error did result in a random tick appearing in the box on that 
section for both indoors and outdoors live music. That was an error. 

3. Cafe 

There is mention of a cafe within the text of our application for a Premises Licence. 
However, the cafe is not a licensable activity and therefore does not form part of our 
application. We propose to remove reference to the cafe from the text of our 
application. 

4. Events 

There are no requests, implied or otherwise, for "special events" included in this 
licence application. 

5. Changes to the text of the application 

Part 3. Operating Schedule: General Description, will now read: 

A redundant farm building at Haydown Farm, Wiremead Lane, East Cholderton, is 
being repaired and converted to house the brewery business. The building is 
attached to one side of a modern grain store. The entire space to be used by Breach 
Farm Brewing Ltd (BFB Ltd) is 6m deep and 24m wide (144 sqm). The building will 
have four sections each approximately 6m x 6m. The first will be used mainly for dry 
storage. The second will hold the brewhouse and fermentation tanks. The third will 
be for cold storage and tasting area. The fourth will offer additional seating and a 
small meeting space available for community use. 

BFB Ltd is purposely small-scale, focusing on quality over quantity. Each beer is 
hand made using the best natural ingredients, locally sourced whenever possible. 
Brewing on such an extremely small scale is expensive and requires us to educate 
and sell directly to the consumer.   

The tasting room be open four days each week. Proposed hours are Thursday 4-
8pm, Friday 4-9pm, Saturday Noon-9pm, Sunday 1-6pm. When brewing at capacity, 
which is anticipated in 18 to 24 months, we may wish to expand to a 5 day schedule, 
using the same hours. 

Table E Live Music will now be entirely blank with no entries 

Table J Supply of Alcohol will be subdivided into two sections J1 and J2 for on sales 
and off sales respectively, and these will read: 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 39



J1 on sales & off sales: 
Monday nil 

Tuesday nil 

Wednesday nil 

Thursday 16.00 to 20.00 

Friday 16.00 to 21.00 

Saturday 12.00 to 21.00 

Sunday 13.00 to 18.00 

J2 off sales only 

Monday 11.00 to 16.00 

Tuesday 11.00 to 16.00 

Wednesday 11.00 to 16.00 

Thursday 11.00 to 16.00 

Friday 11.00 to 16.00 

Saturday 11.00 to 12.00 

Sunday nil 

There will be no entries under "seasonal variations" or "non-standard timings" in 
either J1 or J2. 

Table L Hours Open to the Public will now read: 
Monday 11.00 to 16.00 

Tuesday 11.00 to 16.00 

Wednesday 11.00 to 16.00 

Thursday 11.00 to 20.00 

Friday 11.00 to 21.00 

Saturday 11.00 to 21.00 

Sunday 13.00 to 18.00 

There will be no entries under "seasonal variations" or "non-standard timings". 

Table M Section d) the prevention of public nuisance: the last paragraph will now 
read: 

We will work hard to be good neighbours and to instill in staff and guests a culture of 
giving back and protecting what we have. Good neighbour signage will be on site 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 40



and in brewery promotional materials. An example of our cultural messaging would 
be:  

Please help us be good neighbours and keep this farm beautiful. Always leave 
quietly. If you drive, drive slowly. Please clean up after yourself and your neighbour 
by picking up any litter you may find. Thank you! 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 41



Excerpts from the Operations Plan for Breach Farm Brewing Ltd on Haydown Farm 

1 
©2021 BFB Ltd 
 
 

Mission Statement 

Produce world class beer for the purpose of bringing people together, supporting the 

community, and promoting a healthy lifestyle, and to champion craft beer through education, 

exposure, and experience. 

Size and Scope 

BFB Ltd is purposely small-scale, focusing on quality over quantity. Each beer is hand made using the 

best natural ingredients, locally sourced whenever possible. Brewing on an extremely small scale is 

expensive and requires us to educate and sell directly to the consumer. On this small scale selling to 

pubs and restaurants would not be practical or profitable. We will also brew for weddings and events. 

Community 

Another guiding principle is to work with the community to support various causes and local charities 

and be welcoming for all. We will continue to participate in local events (Amport-Monxton Village Fete, 

and Jazz in the Garden in Upper Clatford) and support local charities. Part of the brewery building will be 

set up as a small tasting area and some of that space (< 6m x 6m) will be available for community use 

when not in use by the brewery. The brewery and tasting area will have disabled access and the farm’s 

toilet block will have a WC for disabled use.  

We will work hard to be good neighbours and to instill in staff and guests a culture of giving back and 

protecting what we have. Good neighbour signage will be on site and in brewery promotional materials. 

An example of our cultural messaging would be: Please help us be good neighbours and keep this farm 

beautiful. Always leave quietly. If you drive, drive slowly. Please clean up after yourself and your 

neighbour by picking up any litter you may find. Thank you! 

Leisure, Health and Wellbeing 

“… support the promotion of a healthy lifestyle… including the promotion of walking and cycling.”       

Our mission statement was designed with a rural location in mind. Haydown Farm, surrounded by small 

villages and with footpaths and rights of way converging on site, is an ideal home. Walkers from Amport, 

East Cholderton, and parts of Quarley can reach the farm in under 10 minutes. Those from Monxton, 

Thruxton, Weyhill, and Kimpton are only slightly further by foot and under 10 minutes cycling.  

Our guests will be encouraged to walk, hike, or cycle to the farm and everyone will be welcome to use 

the brewery as a starting or finishing point, or just a convenient stop. There will be casual seating, 

securable bike storage, and hiking maps showing 5K and 10K loops will be on display. BFB Ltd would 

support a weekly meet-up for runners and walkers and offer a form of green credit for those who leave 

cars at home and walk or cycle to the brewery. 

The tasting area will be dog friendly and BFB Ltd is happy to contribute to the maintenance of local 

footpaths.  

Protect, Conserve, and Enhance the Landscape Character of the Farm and Village 

The area of the farm in front of the brewery and adjacent to the main footpath is being beautified. In 

addition to site cleanup, the building will get roof repairs, new doors, and fresh paint to match other 

buildings on the Farm. The area in front of the brewery will have new landscaping to include grass, trees 

ANNEX 3Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 42



Excerpts from the Operations Plan for Breach Farm Brewing Ltd on Haydown Farm 

2 
©2021 BFB Ltd 
 
 

and flowers, and the main farm track up to the brewery is being repaired/re-graded to be more cycle 

and pram friendly. For those who choose to drive parking will be available to the rear of the grain store 

out of sight to the brewery and main footpath and sound protected by berms and hedgerows. There will 

be parking for blue badge holders.  

Employment Site in the Countryside 

Breach Farm Brewing Ltd will be a local employment site. The initial operation will have one full-time 

and possibly one part-time worker. When operating at capacity the brewery could require two full-time 

and up to four part-time workers.  

Education and Learning 

Part of our mission statement is “to champion craft beer through education, exposure, and experience.” 

Brewery tours would offer an introduction to the equipment and process of making craft beer. Guided 

tastings would educate guests on beer styles, ingredients, and food pairing. The brew-day experience 

would be a hands-on dive into professional, small-batch brewing. BFB Ltd will also support the brewing 

community, (home and craft brewers), by providing a place for guild meetings and help with continuing 

education. 

Operational Plans 

It is desired that the brewery and tasting room open four days each week. Proposed hours are Thursday 

4-8pm, Friday 4-9pm, Saturday Noon – 9pm, and Sunday 1-6pm. We would like to have the flexibility to 

change days of the week as we seek the ideal days of operation. In the event we changed to another 

weekday the hours would be the same (4-8pm). When brewing at capacity, which is anticipated in 18-24 

months, we may wish to expand to a 5-day schedule using the same hours. 

Supply of alcohol Standard days and timings 

Off the Premises (only) 

- Mon thru Fri 1100 – 1600 

- Sat 1100 – 1200 

Both On and Off the Premises 

- Thurs 1600 - 2000 

- Fri 1600 – 2100 

- Sat 1200 – 2100 

- Sun 1300 - 1800

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 43



Excerpts from the Operational Plan for Breach Farm Brewing Ltd on Haydown Farm  

3 
©2021 BFB Ltd 
 
 

We anticipate starting slowly and taking time for the business to develop. Selling our product requires 

an educated/informed customer. For that reason, we must take every opportunity to tell our story and 

sell our product. Tasting room hours are important, as are any ‘chance’ opportunities to speak to 

customers. For that reason, we will welcome anyone walking by and popping in while the brewery is 

manned for standard operations. (1100 – 1600 Mon – Fri and 1100 – 1200 Sat.)  

There are no requests for special events of seasonal variations. 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 44



ANNEX 4 
 

With reference to the above application we wish to express our concerns as follows, 

 

We personally do not oppose the development of a Brewery at the grain store but do strongly oppose 

a licence to provide and sell alcohol and provide entertainment. 

 

This would be have a huge impact on local residents and indeed wild life in the area. 

This part of the village provides a haven for wildlife, owls regularly nest in the barn immediately 

opposite and cows are also over wintered there. Local residents and others enjoy the peace and quiet 

while walking the paths and woodland close by indeed several paths pass directly or very close to the 

area of concern. 

Live music will be heard by residents in East Cholderton and Amport village. We have a local pub in 

Amport which deserves all the help from local and outside custom and we feel it certainly does not 

need close competition.  

 

Huge support against this application appears to be building and we hope others will come forward 

with their concerns within the time scale allowed. 

 

David and Jennifer Gollop 

Victoria Cottage 

The Green 

Amport 

SP11 8BA 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 45



Dear Mr White 
 
RE:       Breach Farm Brewing Ltd  

Premises Licence for sale of alcohol for consumption on and off the premises  

            Annex to Grain Store, Haydown Farm, Wiremead Lane, East Cholderton SP11 

8LR  

  

Many thanks for your reply. Following acknowledgement and clarification from your 

office about acceptable terms of objection would like to inform you that I am 

pursing issues around livestock, wildlife and fauna and the impact on them on their 

environment with other authorities.  

  

I would, however, like to reiterate my concerns regarding:  

  

Public Nuisance  

People will be drinking during the licencing hours asked for not ‘tasting’ as the 

brewery is marketing.  Tasting I believe is trying a few small samples of something 

and then deciding and purchasing one’s preferred tipple.  I don’t believe spending 

hours drinking late into the night and on occasions early mornings counts as 

‘tasting’ it is drinking and possibly to excess for some customers.   

  

Breach Farm Brewery have posts on their social media (Facebook) of ‘events’ in 

which noise and light pollution are extremely evident.  Musicians and singers are 

promoted. The noise of the crowds excessive. Another concern for me is litter and 

disposal of broken bottles and glass. Numerous families with children and dogs will 

frequent the area as it is virtually on a footpath.  

   

Protecting members of the community from harm  

The brewery and ‘tasting’ area are adjacent to public footpaths used by families, 

dog walkers, horse riders. This will impact on all those people out for ‘quiet’ 

enjoyment of the countryside.    

  

The farm track is one vehicle width for most of its length and not conducive to 

vehicles passing each other safely at the best of times, especially where the track 

cuts through my horse paddocks and there is then the possibility of fencing being 

damaged and horses wandering onto the lane and the nearby A303.  Horses in 

panic will cause severe damage and injury to anything in their path whether it be 

vehicles or people. There would also be the concern of people walking, cycling 

and cars all passing each other on the track.  

  

Public safety  

I don’t believe that many people are totally aware of the dangers on farms and 

their equipment especially if they are inebriated. Fires are a big concern and with 

smoking so close to barns holding equipment, hay, haylage and straw together 

with chemicals it may be an accident waiting to happen.  People will be drinking 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 46



inside and outside the venue and therefore it will be virtually impossible to prevent 

people from wandering off to the side to have a smoke and then discard a 

cigarette butt. Social media posts by Breach Farm Brewery show fire pits being used 

and Mr Hartigan is consistently posting and arranging for a pizza van, again with a 

fire, and other eateries to dispense on the village green.  Will there be assurances 

that these will not be appearing at the grain barn to cater for customers.  

  

Prevention of crime and disorder  

Once people are buoyed by alcohol, they invariably become carried away with 

what they are capable off and what they touch.  Most things on a farm are 

dangerous whether it is because people climb on a tractor to have their photo 

taken, look at me lift this, etc.  

  

There have been numerous incidents of theft and criminal damage on the farm in 

the past.  I have been a tenant on the farm for several years with horses and 

despair at the incidents of theft of batteries, fencer units, hay and even 

buckets.  Plus, one of our horse trailers has been defaced by graffiti.  

  

The farm access track runs from Wiremead Lane up to the barns flanked part the 

way along by my paddocks.  For several months now a gate, locked overnight, has 

been installed.  This has reduced significantly unwanted visitors and hence a 

reduction in crime and disorder.  Unfortunately, there have been some issues with 

village residents objecting to the farm gate being in-situ and locked and there has 

been an incident of the padlock being taken. It is depressing that some people feel 

the need to make a point and abuse the landowner’s property.  It is a minor 

incident in the scheme of things, but it shows how untrustworthy people are even in 

a village.   

  

I would like to close by stating that in all my time at Haydown Farm and dealing 

with my horses whether it be late evening, sometimes extremely late or early hours I 

have always felt safe.  There is no street lighting and I wear a head torch.  It can be 

extremely dark.  However, now with the knowledge of people drinking and possibly 

to excess I have to say I feel somewhat daunted about the prospect of being at 

the horses on my own.  The possibility of it being dark and people driving down the 

track and possibly tooting a car horn, making gestures, whistling, or making 

comments feel me with dread. I am even more uncomfortable with the knowledge 

that people are going to be asked to walk and cycle as I won’t necessarily hear or 

see them coming as easily.  Buoyed by alcohol whether by a single person or in a 

group the prospect of people having a ‘drink’ and coming so close to me, and my 

stables is making me feel extremely uncomfortable and vulnerable.  There is no 

other access road to the farm.  

  

I have this afternoon (28 August) attended a meeting at where Mr Hartigan 

presented his brewery plans to people and am appalled by what I heard.  I attach 

a copy of a Facebook post in which he seemingly apologises for his mistake in 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 47



completing his licensing application.  At the meeting he stated that TVBC made the 

application difficult to complete !  Mr Hartigan advised those present that he would 

ask the Council to ‘adjust’ his application.  Surely it would be appropriate for the 

application in question to be thrown out and a further application to be made and 

another 28 day consultation period for people to comment !  

  

Regards.  
 

Ann Hughes 
 

Dear Sir  

RE:  Breach Farm Brewing Ltd  

Premises Licence for sale of alcohol for consumption on and off the premises  

 Annex to Grain Store, Haydown Farm, Wiremead Lane, East Cholderton SP11 8LR  

I am submitting a representation / objection in relation to the proposed licensing of the abovementioned 

premises. The basis for this opposition is that granting a licence for these premises as currently proposed will 

not promote the licensing objectives, particularly the prevention of public nuisance, public safety and anti-

social behaviour. In particular, I believe that there will be a detrimental impact on the locality.  

1. Public Nuisance  

The brewery will be on a farm. There is sure to be the request for a limitless number of open air "events" 

for promotional launches of products that will also cause disturbance and light pollution to the livestock 

in-situ ie cattle and horses, wildlife and to residents in the nearby houses ? Reality is, this is a business 

and businesses need to be promoted and promotions bring the public in. The adjacent barn is used 

regularly for calving and the girls are not guaranteed peace and quiet with the prospect of social 

interaction, music, bright lights and traffic noise. Disturbance when they calve and rear their young will 

have catastrophic consequences for them and their owner. 

I have seen posted on social media posts by Breach Farm Brewing who at their previous location in 

Basingstoke held numerous events which included the playing of bag pipes, live entertainment by 

Maud’s Dog, duo Jackie Pryce and Mark Fisher plus others, so it is hard to imagine this is not 

going to be replicated at Haydown Farm. I do not believe the farm will benefit from musicians 

or singers blasting across the countryside. Nor will the farm or countryside benefit from catering 

vans, firepits, barbeques or gawdy lighting.  

In addition, there will be a need to have rubbish and glass refuse bins. People are not guaranteed to use 

facilities put in place so who is going to be responsible for the clean-up operations ?  

Also, will there be a ban on smoking on the farm ? Feed supplies, chemicals, farm machinery and stubble 

fields are all extremely flammable.  

The farm is presently a haven for wildlife with deer, foxes, hares, swans, geese, owls to highlight just a 

few species. An increase in traffic, footfall, music and lights are going to severely impact and most 

probably destroy the habitat in which they currently thrive.  

2. Protecting members of the community from harm  

The proposals are inconsistent with the licensing objectives because they will impact upon traffic 

congestion, and this raises concerns about safety of walkers and cyclists.  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 48



In addition, for those horse riders in our community there are concerns about safety excessive noise and 

congestions etc. This is of particular concern to me as a tenant as my horses are stabled just inside the 

entrance to the farm. This is my only means of vehicular entrance / exit on to the farm / Wiremead Lane. 

My alternative route out of the farm (but not vehicular) is on a footpath which runs directly alongside 

the Brewery complex and the proposed car parking area. Therefore, licensing any future proposed 

events (music indoor and outdoor, and late alcohol etc.) with the associated noise and unusual sights 

and sounds could spook the horses and cause a real risk to my health and well-being, as well as to other 

local riders.  

 

 

Presumably the licensing application makes no mention of the use of plastic rather than glass drinks 

glasses, which would reduce the risk of harm to children, animals etc. when invariably such containers 

are broken etc. Glass on a farm where there are dogs, cattle and horses is frankly a horrifying prospect.  

 
3. Public safety/prevention of crime and disorder  

 

The proposed licensing hours and the likelihood of possible future applications for internal and external 

late night music licenses do not take into account the limited parking facilities at the Brewery. Overspill 

customers will almost certainly decide to park and walk if allocated parking is full. How is car parking 

going to be monitored / controlled?  

 

The farm already has impromptu visitors in the form of dog walkers who drive onto the farm, park and 

walk. This will only become worse with the licensing of the Brewery. I would ask that consideration is 

given to the impact upon the road and the extent to which parking along the single track road, with a 

field verge, when the car parks are full may occur. This will cause not only a public nuisance but bring 

about public safety issues for those trying to use the farm track, ie walking with children and or dogs, 

cycling, horse riding and the movement of motorhomes, caravans and horse trailers from the storage 

compound.  

 

Caravan storage is also provided on the farm and the single track has relatively few passing spaces. 

Vehicles will inevitably be driven into the field verges / crops to pass each other and brushing very close 

to horse fencing – a number of hits have already been sustained to paddock fencing and water stopcock 

due to lack of manoeuvring space and lack of patience on the part of some drivers.  

 

 

In addition, there is the concern about additional accidents etc. If events were to be held there is 

extremely limited public transport so, those tasting and drinking the beer in the brewery may find 

themselves driving under the influence. Also, bringing children on to a farm with the possibility of them 

being left unsupervised whilst parents drink, socialise and become distracted could mean that haylage 

bales stacked, machinery parked, calves penned and horses could become of interest and therefore 

accidents occur.  

 

As a tenant on the farm (with horses) I have had significant trouble with theft, trespass into the 

fields, people throwing bags of food into the fields and dogs fouling. These problems will 

inevitably be exacerbated with the increased flow of people onto the farm.  

 

The environment / local countryside is important to almost 100% of residents in the village and 

tenants at the farm. This application will not improve the local environment or countryside; 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 49



Paths, roads and lanes- speeding traffic and HGVs are of concern to all. The above licensing 

proposals will make this worse for those living and using the local area especially those who use 

Wiremead Lane on a daily basis.  

 

Transport, increased traffic flows will further discourage people from walking, cycling and horse 

riding around the district and make it unsafe for children. I have reported a number of incidents 

both to the Parish Council and the British Horse Society regarding near misses with vehicles 

whilst horse riding. Being told it would take a fatality to occur before a speed reduction would 

be made is incredulous but with increased traffic it will only be a matter of time until this 

occurs. Wiremead Lane is mostly a single-track road with few passing spaces and several bends. 

It has sections with both 30 and 60 mph limits. Totally inappropriate at the best of times and an 

increase in traffic will, no doubt, exacerbate the ongoing problems.  

 

Each year there is the annual problem of contaminated water discharging into the Pillhill Brook 

and tankers are a regular feature 24/7 whilst pumping takes place. Three- way traffic lights are 

always put in place causing chaos.  

 

This is not a rural business, and local employment is not likely to be increased.  

 
There are already two very popular pubs either end of Wiremead Lane – The Hawk Inn and The White 

Horse – therefore I question whether there is really a need another outlet for alcohol consumption all 

within a stretch 1.17 miles!  

 

I would add that I do not think the Public Notice for application of a Premises Licence was 

posted in a particularly notable position. Placed on the farm signage up in a splayed entrance 

has meant that drivers and anyone else using Wiremead Lane would not have noticed the 

application. Neither would people using the footpaths to walk or cycle on the farm if they failed 

to use the main entrance track. An extremely limited audience in my opinion and this could 

have a detrimental impact on the number of objections raised. This instance it is a case of 

ignorance is bliss!  

 

A second notice has now been placed over the first with a different date although nothing has 

changed on the licence application notice!  

 

I ask that the Council refuses the licensing application in its current form and that no late-night 

license be granted, nor music or promotional events be permitted. Better still would be the 

option of permitting a brewery only and allow sales but disregarding completely a licence to 

consume alcohol on Haydown Farm.  

 

 
Kind regards.  

Ann Hughes 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 50



Dear Michael 
 
Thank you for your email. I appreciate your comments and as mentioned would like to 
resubmit my representation which is detailed below.  
 
Many thanks 
 
Pete Acloque 
Mulberry House, 
East Cholderton 
Andover 
Hants 
SP118LR.  
 
Representation – Licensing Application for Haydown Farm 
  

This email is a representation against this licence application. 

  

Introduction: On Saturday 28
th

 August between 2-5pm the applicants for the Nano-brewery licence 

held a meeting in East Cholderton Scouts Hut. This was to explain the applicants vision for their 

Nano-brewery and to respond to the large number of strong opinions against the application, in 

particular its location and opening hours. 

  

In the meeting the applicants firstly explained that the application they had made was in their own 

words, I quote a ‘cock up’. This was because the application requested longer and later hours than it 

was their intention to apply for. It was noted that this was a revised application and that compared to 

the original application, the hours of the licence have been extended. 

  

This has caused widespread confusion on what is designed to be a clear and fair process. 

  

The applicants of the licence publicly declared that they would either revise or re-submit their 

application. Given all these factors I strongly believe it would be fair if: 

- The current application was ignored. 

- The local residents should have 28 days to review any revised application. 

  

My grounds for this representation are as follows: 

  

Public nuisance 
The applicants of the licence intention is to sell beer for consumption on or off site and would 

encourage customers to use the local footpath network to reach the site. We were informed the craft 

ale being sold would be between 6% and 9% and that c. 9,000 pints would brewed per annum. 

  

I am very concerned about this, as even if the Nano-brewery prevented customers drinking too much 

at the brewery, they have no means of controlling how much customers consume in the surrounding 

area near the brewery. 

  

Given this is a remote site, anyone one accosted by a drunk or disorderly customer would have no 

protection from passers by. It would only take one incident to stop members of the community being 

afraid to enjoy the local footpaths. 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 51



Further, introducing an establishment that is licenced so sell alcohol to 11pm will create noise 

disturbance and light pollution that will be heard and seen by residents in this peaceful, rural setting. 

  

Public safety 

  
Access 

Access to Haydown Farm is along a c.400m single track, uneven farm track that leads onto 

Wiremead lane. Wiremead lane is a single track road with few passing places and no pavements. The 

introduction of a licenced premise to the South of the village would put additional pressure on a road 

that is already at capacity.  

  

- The main access to the site would be from the A303 through East Cholderton village. This single-

track road is very narrow and has few passing places. There are already traffic issues and in the 

winter when water extraction water from the Pillhil brook occurs and temporary traffic lights are 

introduced annually.  

- Secondary access would be from the South along a single track road. In addition to crossing the 

narrow and weight restricted bridge crossing the Pillhill brook, this would send additional traffic 

through Amport. This village has no pavements, and the main street is already used by children to go 

to school as well as cyclists, dog walkers and horse riders. 

 

Additional traffic is a significant public safety concern.  

  

Dangerous site 

The proposed site is a working farm. It contains livestock, chemicals, hay bales and is regularly used 

by tractors and combine harvesters.  

Combining these factors with a premise to sell strong beer is a significant public safety concern. 

  

Prevention of crime and disorder 
In the 6 years I have lived in East Cholderton I am aware of high crime in the area. My garage has 

been broken into (Mulberry House), my neighbours garden shed has been broken into (Haydown 

Lodge), the ladies renting the next door field for their horses have had batteries  powering their 

electric fence stolen, neighbouring Waterloo cottage has been broken into, and the site of the 

proposed brewery has had a caravan stolen.   

  

In light of this high level of crime, the village have instigated a strong neighbourhood watch culture 

to reduce crime. Working together we are alert to unusual activity, and if we see people walking 

about at unusual hours or see vehicles parked in unusual places that we do not recognise we report 

this on social media. Through working together like this, our community has learnt how to become 

alert to potential threats and as a result crime has reduced. 

  

Further, and in response to the crime, the owner of Haydown farm put in lockable gates to reduce 

access to his farm in early 2021. 

  

We are very concerned about the brewery introducing unknown vehicles and people to this remote 

area as we feel the all the work we have done as a community will reverse,  and crime and disorder 

will increase.   

  

Protect children from harm 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 52



The local roads do not have any pavements and the surrounding roads are used by (dog) walkers all 

ages and children walking and biking to school. There is a strong concern that the additional traffic is 

dangerous, particularly to school children. 

  

Conclusion: For these reasons I think the location of the site is wholly inappropriate and have very 

grave concerns that a licence to sell alcohol at this site is approved. 

 

 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 53



We wish to make the following representations to the Licensing Authority. 
 
We object to the issuing of an alcohol licence at the above for the following reasons: 
 
The hours of opening will destroy the peacefulness and tranquillity of this rural setting, 
thereby causing nuisance and discomfort, not only to near residents but also the public in 
general who use the public Rights of Way around the site. 
 
The consumption of alcohol, particularly in the evening, and more so at “functions” 
invariably generates noise.  This is unacceptable and incompatible with quiet enjoyment of 
the countryside. 
 
The hours of trading proposed will involve lighting to show the building - access and parking 
area at night causing light pollution in this hitherto dark area. 
 
Vehicular access will result in additional traffic through the village of East Cholderton which 
will cause hazards and nuisance in this quiet hamlet. 
 
The site is at an intersection of several footpaths, one of which is the rough access track 
from Wiremead Lane.  The proposal will, of necessity, increase the traffic flow on this 
access track.  This will present a danger to walkers, their children and animals, riders and 
other footpath users who will be endeavouring to avoid cars and, in wet weather, being 
soaked by spray from the numerous potholes. 
 
The application is not specific as to the number of drinkers to be catered for, but even a 
modest number will require a sizeable parking area.  This will be an unsightly blot on the 
landscape.  Manoeuvring vehicles will put the public in danger.   
 
Having a building in such an area, selling alcohol for up to 11 hours a day is incompatible 
with the location and is likely to lead to antisocial behaviour. 
 
The proposal amounts to the provision of a new public house in the area.  It would be a 
completely unsuitable location due to the access, and detrimental to farm animals, wildlife 
and the rural nature of the surroundings. 
 
The brewing of beer and a small tasting facility is acceptable.  However the vastly extended 
proposal and hours applied for is not. 
 
We appreciate you taking this letter into consideration when making your decision on 
granting a new Premises Licence.  Our objections are based on concerns that this Licence 
may increase the possibility of public nuisance for dwellings nearby, including our own. 
 
Clive and Angela Pedlar 
Old Farm Cottage 
East Cholderton 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 54



I strongly object to this application for the following reasons. 
 
The 7 days business which applicant has applied for will create a public nuisance from both 
adverse noise and light pollution in a small hamlet surrounded by farm land.  
It’s neither warranted or needed which would create more unwarranted traffic 7 days a 
week and up to late at night. 
East Cholderton has The White Horse pub & Restaurant has and The Hawk in Monxton, 
both within walking distance, these two Licensed Premises serve Amport, Monxton and 
East Cholderton, there is absolutely no need for another . 
The site proposed is off a Conservation area, Wiremead Lane has no pedestrian foot paths, 
this will create a danger to both residents, cyclists and walkers both day and night .  
The access is via a farm track where there are residents who will be greatly affected by 
noise, traffic and light pollution of which we are blessed with none at present. 
The site proposed is crossed by 4 footpaths of which any users will be possibly create 
safety hazards both day and night. 
Although aware, from some bizarre reason animals are not accepted as a reason for denial 
of a Alcohol License in this instance it should seriously be a consideration.  
The access track has Horse paddocks either side, there are cattle in field alongside farm 
track also, Alcohol Licensed premises are not usually sited in such areas but in this case 
access is to a Agricultural Farm, it’s not an urban area in any sense or form. 
The License Application mentions long days and late nights thus creating a traffic nuisance, 
a late night noise nuisance and light pollution nuisance, none of which residents have to 
experience at present, in fact the very reason residents live and bought property here. 
The Applicant have expressed already, late Burns Night, NY Eves night up to 3 am which is 
totally unacceptable to residents . 
The Parish Council we’re not aware of the plans until I bought it to their attention. 
Parish Council do Not support the Application, Monxton PC may but then they aren’t going 
to be affected by the disruption 7 days a week and every night. 
This application should be looked at very closely and the website of the Applicants present 
premises which offer far more than merely tasting sessions. 
The encouragement of alcohol consumption in an area with no street lights , no pedestrian 
pavements to protect residents and visitors is extremely ill advised of which All residents 
are extremely against and are dismayed that such an Application should even be 
considered. 
East Cholderton is a hamlet in a Conservation area, it needs to be protected from noise, 
light and increased traffic pollution. 
There is very much the danger of considerable lorry deliveries daily through Wiremead 
Lane creating a considerable noise and toad danger nuisance to All residents.  
There is also the concern that excess alcohol consumption will give cause of concern to 
residents due to excessive noise late at night, after closing time, i.e., drinking up time, car 
noise, car doors slamming, late traffic noise and no doubt shouting as we all know from 
experience of Licensed Premises already. 
That and the more very concerning aspect as per Applicants Website that they hold Firepits 
,BBQs and firework nights, none of which residents can afford as many Thatched properties 
around of which one I own ! 
Plus, the noise and bangs of Fireworks with horses, cattle, residents and pets would find an 
Intolerable nuisance on many levels. 
I appeal to TVBC Licensing Dept to refuse this very ill-advised application on all the above 
grounds.  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 55



The Farm owner only recently erected large lockable gates to restrict access to the Farm 
Track to stop unwarranted and unknown persons from access to the Farm area and 
buildings, no one would know who or whether they should have access or even be there at 
all , another great concern to residents and their livestock of which owner of Haydown Farm 
rents our paddocks and fields , the track also adjoining private property and field in which 
cattle are situated at times Trusting the above points address a considerable area to which 
this Application is completely unwarranted and of considerable detriment to the area, 
residents, walkers , and private property . 
Perhaps the Applicant should settle on applying in the areas where the activities would not 
impinge so greatly on a peaceful rural area but stick to Industrial Estates and not imply it’s a 
Nano Brewery but a glorified small pub as on their Websites they also state they serve food 
too. 
Looking forward to a reply and that this Application is refused totally. 
 
Yours Sincerely 
Mr J V White 
Mr S R Sothcott 
Monks Cottage 
Wiremead Lane 
East Cholderton 
SP11 8 LR  
 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 56



Good morning  
I am a resident at Elmstead park Wiremead Lane next to Haydown Farm. I live opposite the 
gate at the top of Elmstead park which leads to Haydown Farm. We are already used as a 
cut through for dog walkers which allow their dogs to foul on our grass ways .As I am sure 
you are aware Elmstead Park is private property and no public footpath. My concerns are 
we will be used as a cut through late at night banging gates and leaving them open as they 
do now .l am one of the few residents that still have to work and I don't want to be woken 
every weekend or through the week people walking pass my house .Whilst I am not against 
the brewing development I really do not want to hear about it every night and people need 
to keep of private property.  
 
Yours sincerely  
Kerry Vincent  
22 Elmstead Park Wiremead Lane East Cholderton Andover Hants SP11 8LU  
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 57



Dear Sir/Madam 
 
Re: Breach Farm Brewing Ltd 
Premises License for the sale of alcohol for consumption on and off the premises 
Annex to Grain Store, Haydown Farm, Wiremead lane, East Cholderton, SP11 8LR 
 
I would like to submit an objection with regard to the above for all the reasons noted below. 
I strongly feel that if the license was granted it would have a detrimental effect on the farm 
and the surrounding area. 
 

1. Public Nuisance 
The farm that this request is for is a very small farm within a very small, quiet and tranquil 
village/hamlet. The increased level of traffic along Wiremead Lane and then on the private 
track that leads to the proposed premises will in no doubt have an unwanted impact on the 
local residents, walkers, dog walkers, cyclists, horse riders and local farmers (especially at 
harvest times etc.) 
The amount of cars, motor bikes (off road bikes are not currently permitted on the farm) that 
will be parking at the farm will impact on walkers, dog walkers, horse riders, farm traffic and 
wildlife. There are large grain lorries coming and going from the farm at various times that 
pass directly by the proposed premises, again at various times through the year there are 
combine harvesters and various other large pieces of farm equipment parked nearby and 
moving around, more cars and people on the farm will surely impact on the farmer. 
There will no doubt be a big increase in noise especially during the evening open hours, 
events and promotional nights when the farm and surrounding area is quiet and peaceful. 
Noise will disturb livestock, wildlife and local residents. 
There will be lighting which will also disturb livestock, wildlife and possibly local residents. 
Litter is highly likely to increase as the number of people increases as we have sadly seen 
on so many occasions during the lockdowns. Dog poo bags being left indiscriminately 
around the farm and even thrown into the animals fields/paddocks. 
Fire is of great concern with livestock being kept in the barn just a few meters away, hay, 
straw, chemicals, fertilizers etc, a stray cigarette is all it takes. 
 

2. Drunk and disorderly 
With the consumption of alcohol there is always a chance of drunk and disorderly behaviour 
whether it be an increase in noise or silly acts. With machinery, chemicals, livestock etc so 
close by there could be a chance of serious harm, accident, damage and distress caused to 
animals. 
 

3. Wildlife 
There is a wonderful variety of wildlife on and around the farm including barn owls, bats, 
badgers, foxes, deer, muntjac, hares, ground nesting birds, hedgehogs just to mention a 
few. The flora and fauna needs to be protected especially those species already in danger. 
The increase in traffic, noise, lighting etc will in no doubt disturb so many of these animals 
especially those that are nocturnal and may even drive them away. Those that have already 
lost so much of their natural habitat need to be able to keep what they have left. 
I am lead to understand that flora and fauna will not count in this planning application but 
surely an ecological survey should have been carried out on the barn and surrounding area 
before any building work had begun? Surely there should be consideration these days to 
wildlife? Please let me know who I can contact with regard to this matter. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 58



4. Livestock 
There are a small herd of cows which are housed in the barn just a few meters away when 
they are calving, raising their calves and being overwintered. Disturbance to them at such 
times when they require peace and quiet can cause a number of problems and 
unnecessary stress to them and their owner. 
I have had the pleasure of keeping my horses on the farm for the last fourteen years, but on 
occasion have had problems with uncontrolled dogs chasing them around their paddocks, 
litter left and people feeding them sometimes with items that can cause choking, illness and 
unnecessary vet bills and distress. Which sadly I can only imagine will increase with more 
and more people. I fully appreciate that many people just want to make a fuss of them and 
feed them but it is not always in the horses best interest. 
 

5. Risk of accident 
The nearby barn houses various pieces of farm machinery, equipment, trailers, chemicals, 
fertilisers, hay, straw bales and is easily accessed. If unsupervised children or adults that 
may have had a little too much to drink were to access this area and be tempted to 
play/climb etc there is a significant chance of accident and damage. The cows are very 
protective of their young and capable of causing serious harm even death to those 
unexpecting children /adults that may get in with them to make a fuss of them, needless to 
say young calves attract a lot of attention. 
 

6. Security 
Over the past years there has sadly been an increase in theft, damage and vandalism on 
the farm from a simple water bucket being stolen to serious damage and theft of caravans 
which are stored at the farm. 
Gates were installed at the entrance to the farm track which we all try to keep closed and 
locked during the evenings and overnight to help prevent unwanted visitors. It is hard to see 
how these will be able to be locked with visitors coming and going from the brewery at 
different hours. With so many more people/vehicles it will be very difficult to keep a check 
on those that are there for the wrong reasons. This will be of big concern for those who 
keep animals, caravans, equipment etc at the farm and for those residents whose 
properties border the farm and the track. 
 

7. Local pubs/ Hawk conservancy 
With The Hawk Inn, The White Horse and the Hawk Conservancy Trust so close by is there 
really a need for another venue selling alcohol and food? Surely we should be supporting 
those already there. Another premises will no doubt affect their business. 
 

8. The Farm 
 
I like so many of the locals have and still do enjoy and appreciate the peace, tranquillity, 
wildlife and countryside of the farm and its surrounding area. It would be such a shame for 
this to change or even be lost. 
 

9. The countryside code 
Sadly many people are not aware of the countryside code as we have seen all over the 
country especially during lockdowns with disturbance and death of many farm animals, 
uncontrolled dogs, massive increase in litter and anti-social behaviour which has a big 
impact on many people, livestock and the environment. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 59



I therefore ask/hope that the council will not grant a license for the consumption of alcohol 
on and off the premises or permit late night, music or promotional functions at the Annex to 
Grain Store at Haydown Farm. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Jo Badby 
 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 60



Representation and Objection. 

 

Dear Mr. White, 

 

Thank you for sending a copy of the application yesterday 23rd August 2021, which I have now had the 

opportunity to examine in detail. As an immediate neighbour of Haydown Farm, with rights and 

obligations regarding the main footpath from Wiremead Lane to Haydown Farm, it is disappointing that 

Breach Farm Brewing Ltd have not yet taken the opportunity to talk to us, especially as the 

encouragement of increased footpath usage is an integral part of their business plan.  

 

General comments and observations. 

East Cholderton is already well served with public houses, the White Horse, the Hawk Inn at Amport are 

both within easy walking distance of Haydown Farm, as is the Rosebourne cafe / restaurant which also 

offers alcohol for sale.  Indeed the Applicant’s business model would appear flawed, with both the 

George at Thruxton and the Black Swan in Monxton having closed in recent years, despite having 

centuries of establishment; the immediate environment is inundated with licensed premises. The village 

is also well served with the existing Community Hall and currently has no need or desire for further 

‘community space’. 

 

Wiremead Lane, the only access point for Haydown Farm is a single track road with passing places and 

already dangerous to negotiate with existing levels of traffic. The road is used by agricultural traffic, 

horse riders, cyclists, Andover Hash Harriers and walkers on a daily basis. The entrance to Haydown 

Farm  has limited visibility in both directions.  While the application makes reference to the 

encouragement of further pedestrian traffic via existing public footpaths, it must be assumed that any off 

licence sales will be transported by vehicular means. Increased levels of traffic on this hazardous B road 

will endanger public safety. 

 

In the general description of the premises the Applicant describes a ‘redundant farm building … to be 

repaired and converted to house the brewery business.’ This is not completely accurate, the Annex to the 

grain store was in use up until the day before work commenced on the conversion. Haydown Farm is a 

working farm, with livestock, chemicals and agricultural machinery in daily use and close proximity to 

the Annex. Haydown Farm itself has an unfenced swimming pool within a few yards of the Annex. The 

plan for the premises, was not included with the copy of the application as forwarded; and it is therefore 

not possible to accurately assess the extent of the Application. However, while it details the usage of a 

144 sqm building, it does not provide details of other necessary facilities / requirements, such as staff or 

public toilets. Currently those members of the public who do access the site, do so on foot and adhere to 

the footpaths.  The Applicant  in section M b) states that, ‘the venue will have car parking available.’ 

There is no public car parking available on site. Indeed the land owner, Mr. Simon Cheshire, has recently 

taken steps to prevent public access to the site, with the erection of padlocked gates at the entrance -  this 

was undertaken following a spate of break-ins at the farm and neighbouring properties. 

 

The Application refers to the encouragement of drinking alcohol  both on and off the premises; the 

consumption of alcohol in such a dangerous agricultural environment must be considered 

irresponsible  and an inevitable endangering of public safety. 

 

The application is inconsistent, incomplete and inaccurate, as a consequence we are not able to make a 

full determination of the impact. However, based on the details provided to date, we believe that any on 

premise sale (or provision of free of charge ‘tasters’) of alcohol would constitute a danger to public safety 

and the cause of public nuisance and object on these grounds. 

 

We do not object in principle to the establishment of a nano brewery at the Annex but with the sale of the 

beer to be via existing local licensed premises. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 61



Chris Davies.  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 62



 
As a resident of East Cholderton I would like to register my astonishment at Breach Farms 
Brewing Ltd planning application. This would adversely affect the local environment i.e.  
increased traffic, noise pollution and would be totally damaging to the area as a whole. The 
possible increase in traffic flow in Wiremead Lane and the total unsuitability of the unmade 
track leading to the site are major factors that should influence any decision. 
As you are aware there is already a planning application regarding the development of the 
former Chaplains School in Furzedown Lane Amport. The roads from all directions would 
be totally inadequate for the increase in traffic.  
Yours faithfully 
Paul and Susan Ayers, 8 Elmstead Park, Wiremead Lane, East Cholderton SP11 8LU 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 63



We object to the nano brewery having consumption of alchlohol on the premises with live 
music 7 days a week for twelve hours per day. We are a community at Elmstead park of 46 
properties within earshot of the premises. Wiremead lane is not suitable for any more traffic. 
We shall be attending the meeting at the scout hut on Saturday to voice our opinion. 
 
Yours sincerely Mr and Mrs Viney 10a Elmstead Park 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 64



To whom it may 
concern                                                                                                              25/08/2021 
 
We have just recently found out about the proposed application for a Nano Brewery at 
Haydown Farm East Cholderton. 
As we live at the top end of Elmstead Park, approximately about 200 metres from the 
proposed site, we are very concerned about the licencing hours, the noise factor, the traffic 
and parking problem, the litter, nuisance and generally spoiling a very nice peaceful 
environment.  
We have a dog that we regularly walk around that area, at least three times a day as do 
many other dog walkers. 
This is a working farmyard with farm machinery, hay bales and at times cattle with their 
calves that can become aggressive if aggravated. There are also a lot of horses that would 
be disturbed by the traffic at night, not to mention the local wildlife, e.g. deer, badgers, owls, 
bats, foxes etc. 
There is a well-established public house (White Horse) within ½ mile of this site so it is not 
a necessity and serves no useful purpose.  
There is no outside lighting in this area and if any were installed it would then cause light 
pollution which would then be another problem. 
All in all this is not the right site for a drinking establishment with late night music or 
entertainment, local residents must be taken into consideration. 
 
Kind regards 
Anne & Melvin Walter (Elmstead Park) 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 65



Dear Mr White 

I would like to put in my objections for this proposal 
1. You would have to access the farm track from Wiremead Lane, this road is unsuitable for large 

volumes of traffic and had water problems too 

2. The gates at the entrance to the farm are usually locked by 8pm, earlier in the winter. 

3. The farm track to get to this brewery is a unmade, unlit track, again unsuitable for large 

volumes of vehicles 

4. It is a working farm so large farm machinery, used and stored there, which poses a danger 

5. Livestock are kept in a barn opposite in the winter, I would be concerned about their welfare. 

6. To get here people would have to drive, therefore drink driving a huge concern. 

7. There is a mobile home site very close to this Nano Brewery that has a considerable amount of 

elderly people living. and concern has been raised about people wandering about, and excessive 

noise. 

Kind regards 
Debbie Stevens 

 
Dear Mr White 

I have sent some photos which in all cases are metres away from this proposal, which 
surely is very significant to public safety and protecting children from harm 
With regards 
Debbie Stevens 
 

 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 66



 
 

 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 67



Dear Mr White, 
 
I would like to register my representation against the issuing of a licence for the above 
Brewery. 
 
Apart from the problem with Wiremead Lane coping with extra traffic, many locals, including 
myself use the road to walk along and also to exercise their dogs. It can be quite scary at 
times with passing cars as there are no footpaths to walk on. 
 
Also, as alcohol will be served I am concerned about drink/driving. 
 
 
I am concerned too about the public nuisance that live music will cause. It’s bad enough 
already with the noise from Thruxton Race Circuit. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Kevan Blow 
11a, Elmstead Park 
Wiremead Lane 
East Cholderton 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 68



Dear Mr White, 
 
I would like to register my view against the issuing of a licence to the above. 
 
I think that live music inside and especially outside will cause a public nuisance. 
 
Wiremead Lane is already dangerous to walk along without any more traffic, especially if 
the driver has had alcohol! 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Leslie Graham 
11a, Elmstead Park 
Wiremead Lane 
East Cholderton 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 69



Sir 
   I wish to make representation opposing the proposed Nano Brewery. 
  
    I live in Furzedown Lane, Amport and we get almost constant daily noise from Thruxton so on a bank 
holiday weekend we could get 4 days of noise during the day and if the proposed brewery goes ahead it could 
well mean we get 4 nights of noise as well. Not good for ones stress levels as I live less than a mile from 
Haydown Lane. This would clearly be a public nuisance as I can foresee the music would be at most 
weekends during the summer and causing noise pollution for the whole of East Cholderton and Amport. Not to 
mention the terror for the cattle in the adjoining sheds 
  
    The site is somewhat isolated and the farm has been the subject of criminal activity on numerous occasions 
and therefore the brewery itself would be a target for the criminals as well as would other local properties. 
There are no floodlights at the location at present and without doubt, would have to be installed thus causing 
yet another nuisance with light pollution. 
 For your information, the farm yard has Cross Country footpaths running through it from all four points of the 
compass. 
 The access road is in a very poor state of repair and could be regarded as a public safety hazard to both 
punters vehicles as well as increasing the danger to those walking the footpath. I cannot see the land owner 
paying to resurface it. 
  
  It is my view, and most other local residents, that this proposal is the wrong activity in the wrong location. 
  
  
    Regards 
  
  Mr.E.Perren 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 70



The above application has been brought to my attention by a number of other residents of 
East Cholderton although surprisingly I have received nothing from TVBC about a proposal 
which will have significant impact on this rural locality. 
 
Whilst understanding the wish for diversification to augment income from the farm, it is 
difficult to reconcile the need for a brewery in a totally rural location within easy walking 
distance of a well established public house. This is particularly relevant as the declared 
intention by BFB is to establish not just a brewing and sales outlet but also to provide 
facilities for consumption of alcohol both inside and immediately outside the premises. As 
this site is at the junction of a number of local footpaths regularly used by families, licensing 
could hardly be seen as a contribution to prevention of crime and disorder. Indeed the 
combination of alcohol consumption and the remote location will inevitably be seen as a 
threat to families, particularly to unaccompanied women and children. 
 
Furthermore a sales facility will inevitably result in an increase in traffic along the narrow 
Wiremead Lane and the un-metaled track to the farm building. 
 
Apparently the application submitted includes lengthy opening hours from 1100 hours to 
2300 hours on a number of days per week and on Bank Holidays, Burns Night, New Year, 
pre-Christmas and similar occasions. 
Subsequent unofficial statements by BFB indicate a reduction in opening hours but these 
have not been formally declared and, I believe, remain part of the application. 
 
Adjoining a designated Conservation Area, designed to protect and enhance the rural 
nature of the village, a brewery is a totally inexplicable and unacceptable proposal. A 
brewery and its sales would not justify any significant employment and the detrimental 
effect on local walkers, together with the effects on the local residents of extended opening 
hours and live or recorded music, must mitigate against any such proposal. 
 
If for reasons, which it is difficult to imagine, licensing is to be authorised, this must 
specifically limit opening hours and preclude any provision of music, live or otherwise. 
 
Norman Arnell 
(ex Leader TVBC and ex Local Councillor for East Cholderton and Amport Ward) Field 
House East Cholderton 
 
Thank you for the belated provision of the revised Licensing Application. I have updated my 
objection to the provision of the License based on the changes which have been made but I 
remain adamant that this Licence should be refused. 
 
OBJECTION 
 
 Whilst understanding the wish for diversification to augment income from the farm, it is 
difficult to reconcile the need for a brewery in a totally rural location within easy walking 
distance of a well-established public house. This is particularly relevant as the declared 
intention by BFB is to establish not just a brewing and sales outlet but also to provide 
facilities for consumption of alcohol both inside and immediately outside the premises. As 
this site is at the junction of a number of local footpaths regularly used by families, licensing 
could hardly be seen as a contribution to prevention of crime and disorder. Indeed the 
combination of alcohol consumption (of claimed high strength beer) and the remote location 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 71



will inevitably be seen as a threat to families, particularly to unaccompanied women and 
children. 
 
Furthermore even the sales facility alone will inevitably result in an increase in traffic along 
the narrow Wiremead Lane and with increased danger at the entrance to the un-metaled 
track to the farm building, which has severely restricted visibility for  traffic. 
 
The revised application reduces the excessive opening hours but the detrimental impact on 
the use of the footpaths by local rural residents remains as previously highlighted. 
 
Even the spurious justification regarding it as an Employment Site in the Countryside is 
irrelevant when the Hawk, the local pub in Amport, has been offering financial incentives in 
an attempt to attract suitable employees, who would presumably be those required in this 
less accessible rural location. 
 
Adjoining a designated Conservation Area, designed to protect and enhance the rural 
nature of the hamlet, a brewery is a totally inexplicable and unacceptable proposal. The 
detrimental effect on local walkers, together with the effects on the local residents of 
extensive opening hours must mitigate against any such proposal. 
 
N R Arnell 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 72



Dear Sir 

 

Proposal by Breach Farm Brewing Ltd for a Nano Brewery at Haydown Farm in East Cholderton 

I am writing to strongly object to the granting of a license for the above proposal. If this 

were to be purely a brewery with no sales outlet I feel it would be acceptable as we are 

assured there is no pollution in any way to the countryside but this is clearly not the 

owner's aim. 

He held a meeting in East Cholderton yesterday at which he stated that he wanted outdoor 

and indoor seating areas at which people could drink the beer and a cafe serving light 

refreshments (although no kitchen and no mention of any lavatories). He also tried to 

explain why he had 'inadvertently' requested a license for extended opening hours (Sun-

Wes 11-2100 daily; Thur/Fri/Sat 1100-2300 daily; Bank Holidays, Burns Night and the 

12 days prior to Christmas Day 1100-2300 daily; New Year's Eve 1100-0030) and had 

also requested a license for live music both inside and outside the venue. He now says 

that he did not intend to do this and that in fact he only needed permission for a license to 

be granted for Thur 1600-2000, Fri 1600-2100, Sat 1200-2100 and Sun 1300-1800 and 

that he did not want a license for live, or indeed, any music inside or out. 

I asked whether he would be serving any other alcoholic drinks and he said in front of the 

meeting that they would also be selling wine and cider in addition to the beer which is 

apparently stronger than normal beer. My neighbour was not present at that part of the 

meeting but when she asked the same question half an hour later he said that he would not 

be selling wine so it is quite difficult to find out exactly what his intentions are. 

I feel this venue for drinking is not acceptable in a very quiet rural hamlet of 26 houses, 

especially as we have the White Horse pub at the other end of the lane. I cannot think that 

it will prevent crime and disorder; in fact, quite the opposite as people drinking strong 

beer are more likely to be involved in both. 

I cannot think how it will promote public safety as at present we all walk the footpaths in 

the early evening and quite often alone. I am sure that we will feel unsafe to do this with 

people carousing in or outside the barn. When my grand-daughters come to stay I happily 

wave them off to walk round the fields on their own but would definitely not want to do 

this with the venue open. 

I cannot see how it would prevent public nuisance since there is more likelihood of rowdy 

behaviour amongst people who have been drinking than people peacefully walking the 

footpaths. 

I also fail to see how it would protect children from harm. They are more likely to be 

harmed by the extra traffic on what is a very narrow lane and on the unmade-up track 

to the farm. 
I also worry about drivers leaving the venue in an inebriated state. Breach Farm Brewing 

Ltd stated at the meeting that they anticipated most people visiting on foot but I think this 

is unlikely because if the intention is for them to buy beer to take home they would need a 

car in which to carry it. 

I hope you will understand my worries about the granting of a license to Breach Farm 

Brewing especially as we have The Hawk in Amport and The White Horse in East 

Cholderton already and this seem to me to be a totally inappropriate and unnecessary 

additional venue in a quiet rural hamlet. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 73



I understand that this morning Breach Farm Brewing Ltd stated that the present licensing 

application will be withdrawn and another will be submitted with shorter opening hours. I 

assume this means that if this does happen we will need to object again. I would be 

grateful if you could let me know if a new application is submitted. 

Many thanks for your patience in reading this missive, 

Yours faithfully 

Jean Arnell 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 74



Hunters Gate 
East Cholderton 
Andover 
SP11 8LR 
To: Licensing Officer TVBC 
 
Representation – Licensing Application for Haydown Farm 
 
1. I am aware of an application under the Licensing Act 2003 for a Premises 
Licence for the sale of alcohol for a nano brewery at Haydown Farm in East 
Cholderton. In this email I wish to make a representation in regard to this 
application. The context is important and I hope the Licensing Officer will permit 
a short initial explanation. I am aware of the licensing objectives and will explain 
my position based on these criteria. I will also seek advice on how the process 
might develop. 
Context 
2. I am a Member of Amport Parish Council (APC) and fully appreciate that 
this is not APC business; TVBC is the Licensing Authority. I live in East 
Cholderton on Wiremead Lane. I was aware of the proposed development and 
know both the landowner and proposed nano brewery owner. 
3. The proposed location is in a quiet, rural setting, up 500 metres of single, 
rough track. There is no similar business in the immediate location. The 
Licensing Authority has received an application for a premises licence for a new 
business on the site. As it stands, the license application seeks extensive hours 
and broad agreement to the use of the building and its immediate environment, 
for example for the sale of alcohol on the premises and entertainment. There are 
existing public houses on Wiremead Lane and in Amport; we are well served for 
social drinks and food opportunities. 
4. The applicant held a public meeting on 28 August in East Cholderton to 
explain his plans. I know from those that attended that the first presentation 
(shortly after 2pm) was well attended, largely by those from outside the village 
and went well. A second presentation was made at 4pm, attended by up to 40 
East Cholderton residents and another dozen or so ‘supporters’ of the brewery. 
This meeting was tetchy, ill-tempered and emotionally charged; whilst it gave 
the applicant a limited opportunity to explain his plans (too frequently 
presenters were interrupted). Reflecting, I suspect many will regret some of the 
things said – it inadvertently served to focus the anger and frustration felt by 
many in the village at the lack of prior and full consultation. 

5. There are two licensing applications; the first sought modest hours, the 
second extended hours. According to your observations, the second application 
offered the potential licensee the opportunity to ‘test the market’. The revised 
application, by his own admission at the second public meeting, may not fully 
represent the operating model (hours and activities) the applicant had intended; 
he was asked to withdraw it. 
6. The applicant suggests he has approval from TVBC planning officers 
under ‘permitted development’, although I have not seen the TVBC 
communication. 
7. To my knowledge, the applicant (tenant) has a signed lease with the 
Landlord (landowner) that can be varied at any time, without consultation with 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 75



the Licensing Officer or local residents. This is important because the applicant 
has said publically that the Landlord will control hours and use of the site 
(within any agreed licensing hours) and variations to them. Many of us are 
concerned that the lease is not an appropriate document for controlling use of 
the premises; it is the licence that will provide that ‘protection’ to local residents 
and the premises licence as currently presented affords extensive hours and 
days of use. 
Objections 
8. Public Safety. Increased traffic on already congested and narrow country 
roads represent and increased risk to public safety. The narrow track is used by 
walkers, horses and riders and increased use for visitors to the brewery and 
deliveries (in and out of the brewery) represents an increased risk to public 
safety. The farm has cows in a nearby barn; if access around the site is not 
controlled properly, visitors may be unfamiliar with the threat they could 
present and would be at risk. 
9. Prevention of crime and disorder. The area has limited use beyond 
local residents in the four surrounding villages. Residents are aware of most 
crime and disorder threats and prevention initiatives. An influx regularly of 
visitors to the brewery will disturb this equilibrium. Were the car park to 
encourage additional walkers from outside the village to walk around here, that 
could exacerbate this potential. 
10. Public nuisance. The potential for a public nuisance from the 
uncontrolled and legally binding use of the site for the sale of alcohol, use of 
areas outside the building and events and increased traffic over extended hours 
and days limited only by the applicant’s resources present the most pressing 
objection to the premises licence. 
11. Protection of children from harm. Were children to come to the 
brewery, and their access to the farm not be constrained, they could come to 
harm on the farm from animals, farm machinery and other contents (e.g. stacks of straw bales). 
Next Steps 
12. In your prior advice1, you explained the process2. 
13. The applicant was urged to withdraw the application at the public 
meeting and by local residents. 
14. Were the applicant to keep the current application and seek a 
compromise with the Licensing Officer, I am specifically asking you to advise that 
this is the case and consider the following compromises against the current 
premises licence: 
a. Narrow opening times perhaps such as the applicant proposed in 
the first application and has since committed to in public fora. 
b. No additional days (New Years Eve, before Xmas and so forth). 
c. No sale of alcohol for consumption on the site (allows ’tasting’). 
d. No events, live music or food vans3. 
e. No activity outside the ‘barn’. 
f. Access limited up the track to ‘licensed’ hours by the tenant (using 
the landlord’s gate near Wiremead Lane to control access; this will 
require the landlord to make alternative provision for other tenants to 
obtain access). 
g. Limited to six the number of car parking spaces for use by the 
business, controlled by the tenant. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 76



These compromises would also apply if the applicant withdraws the current 
application and wishes to submit another application. I recognise that some of 
these compromises may need to be reinforced or achieved through other 
measures. 
15. We would also recommend a support group is formed by the 
applicant/tenant, perhaps chaired by the landowner and with East Cholderton 
resident representation. It could helpfully be used to consult on local opinion as 
the business progresses (opportunities and challenges). The support group could 
be used in circumstances where extending the hours and holding events are 
considered before any such application is made to TVBC. It would give the 
applicant the opportunity to explain what charitable or community provision 
had been provided by the business, to discuss and evidence green objectives and 
so forth. Such a group could potentially bring back together the four local villages 
that have very recently been in such opposing corners in the last few days over 
this premises application. 
16. Specifically, I would welcome your support: 
- Please let me know if the current licensing application is 
withdrawn, and/or any compromises the licensing authority is 
considering, or if any new application is made. 
- If you refer the application to the Licensing Committee, please 
provide early advice of the date and time of the meeting, so that those that 
provided representation can make best efforts to support the 
deliberations of the Licensing Authority. 
- We would welcome public safety advice from the community 
police and wondered if you could help connect us with the appropriate 
part of TVBC. 
- We would be grateful if TVBC could advise what planning 
authority (permissive or otherwise) has been given and/or may be 
required for the premises. 
17. In conclusion, this application is deeply contested by East Cholderton 
residents – those most affected by the proposals. Ensuring that planning issues, 
the lease and the premises licence are aligned to support the business proposal 
and protect local residents is crucial; we need time to ensure we can play any 
part that we might be permitted to play. The success of the business will best be 
served by carrying the local community with them; there approach to date has 
been fundamentally flawed. Improved consultation could help garner support for 
a limited business model, such as the applicant initially proposed and appears to 
be championing in recent public comments. 
18. We stand ready to oppose unreasonable requests for the current business 
model and to support any such future plans as might be considered by the 
applicant, landlord and/or Licensing Authority to meet the compromises we 
propose. 
Kind Regards, 

Tim Grimshaw 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 77



 
Mrs King 
Mandrey House 
East Cholderton 
Andover 
Hampshire 
SP11 8LR 
 
29 August 2021 
 
For the Attention of Mr Michael White 
Licensing Manager 
Legal and Democratic Service 
TVBC 
Beech Hurst 
Weyhill Road 
Andover 
SP10 3AJ 
 
 
Objection to License Application for the Brewery at Haydown Farm 
 
The space of the brewery unit is quite limited.  There are no boundaries outside the confines of that proposed 
unit.  Health and safety regulations will be applicable only to within the parameters of the unit.  The 
surrounding area is open farmland upon which crops are grown and animals reared. The majority of 
residences in East Cholderton back directly onto this farmland and importantly onto the surrounding footpaths 
which converge just outside the proposed unit. By the very nature of thus far happy rural living, the majority of 
these residences do not have particularly substantial boundaries. 
 
Whilst the majority of the population take care and show responsibility, it is the minority which will become a 
public nuisance and as has been shown over the period of the pandemic this minority is increasing rapidly.  
With few facilities within the unit, there is a high potential for:- 
 

A) Littering over the countryside- Litter which might include broken glass, general rubbish, rotting meat, human 

faeces, drug paraphanelia. There is also a very high risk of an amount of these people exposing themselves to 

the public, either wittingly or unwittingly, neither is acceptable. 

Public nuisance, public safety, harm to children, not to mention animals and adults. 
 

B)  People wandering easily down footpaths to trespass onto land of local residents. A number of these will be 

alcohol fuelled and with that as we know from available crime figures, also comes drug use. The local residents 

are at high risk of exposure to the abuse and frequent disorder and violence that these induce. It is irrelevant that 

this may come from a very few people, but a couple is too many and enough to cause intense distress to the 

population of East Cholderton.  Noted that ‘Licensing’ does not take into account risk to animals:  this is a rural 

community and animals are at the very heart of livelihoods and local rural life. Its why people live there. This is 

not an application for a brewery on an industrial park in a much larger area or even a more built up area, and it 

would be appropriate that the council should take into account the needs of these particular ratepayers. 

Public safety, public nuisance. 
 

C)  ‘b’ will lead to high risk of crime and disorder. It is inevitable that a proportion of incomers will be tempted and 

indeed achieve a level of crime – noise disturbance, theft, drug abuse, trespass.  Already the area has suffered 

from much rural theft – fencing batteries, machinery equipment theft and damage, damage to fencing and 

building structures to name but a few. Only in February 2021 a gate was put at the entrance of the main track 

leading to the barn. Put in to lock overnight in an attempt to reduce at least overnight theft and damage to 

farming equipment.  Many people use these footpaths and tracks daily, this does not prevent the same occurring 

during the day. The presence of the brewery will not prevent such crime, only enhance the risk, and the gate will 

become useless. 

 
D) With an increased influx of humans will come cigarettes, and lower class drug use. You only need one match to 

a dry crop or litter, or to hay and straw left for livestock feed, to cause untold crop and residential damage – 

thatched cottages and outbuildings close by, leading to high potential of human harm and death. With open air 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 78



gatherings come fire pits.  A further risk in this open ended rural landscape. The license mentions allowance of 

fireworks on certain occasions. Fireworks are a well known fire risk even in a town. In this community the risk 

of fire, damage and damage to livestock is immense. At Saturday’s ‘meeting’ the brewers said they would not 

use fireworks. So why apply for it? In this type of environment it is also well known that people bring fireworks 

with them to let off. It is accidents waiting to happen, and happen they will, it is inevitable. The brewers may not 

be liable at that point, the surrounding area to the unit, being un boundaried, is not their problem, not covered by 

their liability or health and safety regulation.  

Public safety, harm to the population, crime, damage, public nuisance. 
 

E) Staying with public nuisance, safety and potentially crime, Wiremead Lane is a narrow road with no road 

markings, with many potholes. As occurs in this type of community, many of its population walk this lane at 

least once a day for exercise, and severally to go about village business. People from Thruxton use it similarly. 

A busy footfall has over the last few years has struggled with the increase in vehicular traffic – delivery vans, 

lorries and school traffic from the surrounding villages. As a frequent walker myself I have found myself more 

often than is reasonable, forced into muddy ditches, splashed from road water, nearly knocked over by 

inconsiderate drivers. Sat navs send delivery drivers up people’s open ended drives and tracks in spite of well 

marked house names for them to see. New influx will increase this significantly, risking scaring residents, 

waking pets and children. Public Nuisance complete, harm, public disorder. 

 
The brewers mentioned at the meeting they held Saturday, that to mitigate traffic they would perhaps 
lock the gates at the end of the main track.  Where will cars park at that point? Along a narrow, 
dangerous lane, blocking through and local traffic. Horse lorries and farm machinery require as much 
width as is available, at all hours of the day and evening. This will cause havoc – even from a few 
extra vehicles. Noise pollution is very much on the agenda of councils around the country, with 
devices being installed to clock the noise levels of ‘gravity’ style vehicles and motorbikes. The noise 
increase will cause substantial nuisance to this rural hamlet. 

 
Liability and Policing 
Liability of the risks of the presence of this brewery and its desires from licensing and trade, will, it would 
seem, fall more at the feet of those who house livestock very close to the site, and those whose residences 
are at most risk – that is, most of East Cholderton.  It seems at odds that the residents should have to worry 
about this and take responsibility for something which has nothing to do with them or their lives.  An excellent 
public house in the hamlet services those needs perfectly. Policing of the inevitable crime, nuisance, damage 
and safety of this area will cost massively. Inevitably it will require ambulance services with some regularity, 
more than the local public house requires, due to the extensive open nature of the premises location and the 
lack of external liability and regulation from the usual health and safety markers which cannot be exacted for 
the same reason.  The residences will end up paying higher rates for this, the brewery will not be affected. 
Although it is, under current policing difficulties, unlikely that the Police will be able to service our community 
to the extent this will require, and be desirable to keep this community safe.  
 
Intimidation 
Vehicles following residents from the meeting Saturday slowed down to a halt at a number of residence 
entrances, staring at us walking to our homes. I personally now feel unsafe in my own house and fear for my 
safety especially when I take my daily walk close to the barn. This is a reality public harassment and 
intimidation which no one should have to tolerate.  
 
Mrs King 
29.08.2021 
 
 

My original objection I wish to remain in place. I have some additional objections having 
read the changes. 
 
The fact that the brewery may be operational at all means that there will be additional traffic 
and personnel going through the hamlet and using the tracks to the farm. Say nav’s will still 
take them up peoples drives. That public nuisance will remain.  
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 79



It will still pose a threat to safety on the fields and surrounding area as they have stated 
how small their building is - emphasising really that the use of the no boundaries of the farm 
and surrounding paths will be utilised.  
 
The above applies to their desire to produce leaflets. Clearly they see a risk but are now 
thinking they can escape blame by doing their bit which as we know, will hold no water with 
those who are curious, over imbibed, and who haven’t been in the ‘sticks’ much.  
Insurance and liability burden is clearly passed to rural users of the farm.  
 
The operation clearly requires visitors from outside the parish by the brewery’s own 
admission of expense requiring return. If allowed to operate the desire to expand on all 
scores will be inevitable to the further detriment of a tiny rural hamlet.  
 
The fact that events and live music has been scrapped only means a delay, for now. I do 
not believe it was an incorrect box tick these people have completed licenses before for 
such a business. In addition to which we were shown a poster for an event at their meeting 
clearly suggesting the presence of music and fireworks, and so on. That cannot take place 
in the confines of their unit. And they meant it to happen.  
 
I reiterate that the risk of public nuisance, liability to the safety not just on and around the 
farm but to the entire hamlet is real and absolute.  
 
The above is an addition to my original objection. 
 

Mrs A King 
East Cholderton  
SP11 8LR 
 
 
 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 80



Dear Sir,  

 

I write to convey my objections to an application by Breach Farm Brewing Ltd for the sale and 
consumption of Alcohol both on and off the premises and live music inside and outside the 
proposed venue at Haydown Farm, East Choldertoan. 

 

This is a very small farm within a very small, quiet and tranquil village. The increased level of traffic - 
cars, motor bikes (off road bikes are not currently permitted on the farm) along Wiremead Lane 
and then on the private track that leads to the proposed premises will have an unwanted impact on 
the farm, on local residents, walkers, dog walkers, cyclists, horse riders and local farmers (especially 
at harvest times etc.) 

 

There would no doubt be a big increase in noise especially during the evening open hours, events 
and promotional nights when the farm and surrounding area is quiet and peaceful. Noise will 
disturb livestock, wildlife and local residents, as will additional lighting, which will also be 
disturbing. Litter is highly likely to increase as the number of visitors increases as we have sadly 
seen on so many occasions during the lockdowns. Fire is of great concern with livestock being kept 
in the barn just a few meters away; with hay, straw, chemicals, fertilizers etc, a stray cigarette is all 
it takes. With the consumption of alcohol there is always a chance of drunk and disorderly 
behaviour whether it be an increase in noise or silly acts. With machinery, chemicals, livestock etc 
so close by there could be a chance of serious harm, accident, damage and distress caused to 
animals. 

 

The variety of wildlife on and around the farm including barn owls, bats, badgers, foxes, deer, 
muntjac, hares, ground nesting birds, hedgehogs will be disturbed. The flora and fauna needs to be 
protected especially those species already in danger. The increase in traffic, noise, lighting etc will 
in no doubt disturb so many of these animals especially those that are nocturnal and may even 
drive them away. An ecological survey should have been carried out on the barn and surrounding 
area before any building work had ever begun. 

 

The herd of cows which are housed in the barn just a few meters away require peace and quiet 
when they are calving, raising their calves and being overwintered - in order to avoid problems and 
unnecessary stress to them. Horses kept on the farm have had problems with uncontrolled dogs 
chasing them around their paddocks, litter left and people feeding them sometimes with items that 
can cause choking, illness and unnecessary vet bills and distress.  

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 81



The nearby barn houses various pieces of farm machinery, equipment, trailers, chemicals, 
fertilisers, hay, straw bales and is easily accessed. If unsupervised children or adults that may have 
had a little too much to drink were to access this area and be tempted to play/climb etc there is a 
significant chance of accident and damage. The cows are very protective of their young and capable 
of causing serious harm even death from those unsuspecting children /adults that may get in with 
them to make a fuss of them - young calves attract a lot of attention.  

 

Over the past years there has sadly been an increase in theft, damage and vandalism on the farm 
and even theft of caravans which are stored at the farm. Gates were installed at the entrance to the 
farm track which we all try to keep closed and locked during the evenings and overnight to help 
prevent unwanted visitors. It is hard to see how these will be able to be locked with visitors coming 
and going from the brewery at different hours. With so many more people/vehicles it will be very 
difficult to keep a check on those that are there for the wrong reasons; and this will be of big 
concern for those who keep animals, caravans, equipment etc at the farm and for local residents.  

 

With The Hawk Inn, The White Horse and the Hawk Conservancy Trust so close by there is no need 
for another venue selling alcohol and food. We should be supporting those already there.  

 

I therefore ask/hope that the council will not grant a license for the consumption of alcohol on and 
off the premises or permit late night, music or promotional functions at the Annex to the Grain 
Store at Haydown Farm. 

Yours truly 

 

John Whatmore 

 

Waterloo Cottage 

Wiremead Lane, 

East Cholderton 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 82



 
 
To whom it may concern       25/08/2021 
 
We have very grave concerns over what has been applied for as in the selling and 
consuming alcohol on the premises at Haydown farm and the proposed opening times. 
We live at the top end of Elmstead Park, approximately about 150 metres from the 
proposed site.  
We have two dogs that are regularly walked around that area along with our 7 year son who 
often goes with us and suffers from autism and is not good with either groups of people or 
excessive noise, also he has no traffic awareness, which is another concern.  Allegedly a 
music licence has also been applied for which means loud music could carry on till quit late 
into the evening. 
Farmyards are renowned for being dangerous environments to be in, what with farm 
machinery, stacks of bales and cows that can become quite aggressive when with their 
calves. 
I am also the Park representative at Elmstead Park and have spoken to several residents, 
most of which were unaware of any brewery proposals at all. They are concerned about the 
licencing hours, the noise levels , traffic levels around what is mostly footpath areas and 
people using the park as a short cut. One resident in particular said that they would feel 
very intimidated walking past any drinkers there and would properly stop his walks. 
  The track leading to and from the site is not really suitable for two-way traffic as there are 
no kerbs or street lighting of any description. 
The area is also home to barn owls, foxes, deer, badgers and other wildlife. 
All in all it not the right site for a drinking establishment with late night music or 
entertainment. 
 
Kind regards 
Lee & Tina Walter 
  
 
  
 
 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 83



Dear Sir/Madam 
 
Application for license to sell alcohol at Annex to Haydown Farm East Cholderton SP11 
8LR 
 
I would like to strongly object to the granting of a license for the above on the following 
grounds: 
 
1) Increase in traffic on a single file track off a road through a peaceful and quiet village. 
2) Security issues for surrounding properties. 
3) Adequate local pubs supplying alcohol. 
4) Disturbance to local livestock. 
5) Disturbance to wildlife and fauna. 
6) Litter. 
 
I have had a house in the village for 50 years and feel that if the above license were to be 
granted it would have a seriously detrimental affect on the local community. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
Anne Whatmore 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 84



Re: Breach Farm Brewery Ltd, Haydown Farm, Wiremead Lane, East Cholderton, Andover 
SP11 8LR Licence Application 
 
Dear Sir or Madam 
 
We would like to make representations in relation to this application.  We are against this 
licence application for the following reasons: 
 
We do not need another alcoholic establishment we already have four in the vicinity, The 
Hawk Inn, The White Horse, Rosebournes and The Hawk Conservancy and soon a hotel in 
Amport House, we do not need another one in this small area. We understand that beer will 
be brewed and sold and also wine, coffee and cakes.   
 
The Main Grain Store Annexe on Haydown Farm is not suitable for licenced premises, the 
entrance is on a farm track from Wiremead Lane, unlit so very dark at night.  There are 
properties backing onto the farm some only a few hundred yards away from the Grain 
Store.  The barn next to the Grain Store Annexe is used for cows in the winter and very 
often they are in calf, there are many horses in the surrounding fields. The farm has public 
footpaths that go through the barn area for walkers. The farm also has a caravan store and 
many lockups in the barn area and for security the gates are locked at the entrance from 
Wiremead Lane and entry with a vehicle is only by code after dark.   
 
Having a licenced brewery on the farm would bring extra public onto the farm, noise, 
rubbish, disruption.  If a licence was issued a further licence can be applied for to increase 
the hours and a music licence indefinitely.  
 
We appreciate that farms do need to diversify hence the storage areas already there but 
licence premises is not the answer. 
 
The Brewery did have premises in Dummer without a licence but did do events in an 
adjoining field and are now in Monxton for brewing only without a licence.  We understand 
that this brewery is a hobby only so it is for a party atmosphere and we can see events with 
music being included at a later date. 
 
This is not needed, not right or has any benefit to East Cholderton a quiet rural village or 
the surrounding villages.  
 
Yours faithfully 
 
Ian and Lorraine Gaitskell 
Robins 
Amport 
Andover SP11 8AX 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 85



I have been made aware of an application by Breach Farm Brewery of an application for a 
license to sell alcohol on and off their premises at Haydown Farm, Wiremead Lane, East 
Cholderton, every weekday until 2100 hours, on weekends until 2300 hours and via events 
such as New Year's Eve, Burn's Night and from 12-24 December. I wish to register my 
opposition to this application. 
 
Wiremead Lane is a quiet residential lane in a rural setting on the edge of Amport civil 
parish. The lane is mostly designated as a Conservation Area, being made up of cottages 
and farmhouses, most of which sit directly on or very close to the lane itself. In keeping with 
its status as a Conservation Area, Wiremead Lane is narrow, unlit and un-pavemented.  
Haydown Farm is set back from Wiremead Lane but can only be accessed from it. There is 
very little public transport to the area during the day and none in the evenings. These facts 
are relevant because they help explain the impact the proposed brewery and events venue 
will likely have on the area 
 
The link to the Application is here: 
https://www.testvalley.gov.uk/business/licensingandregulation/licensing/adviceinformation/c
urrent-consulttions?displaypref=large-contrast 
 
My concerns about this application centre on: 

 Potential for crime and disorder 

 Threat to public safety 

 Public nuisance 
arising from alcohol consumption and especially late-night drinking events in this locality. 
 
Potential for crime and disorder 
The proposal is not for a pub-restaurant where diners enjoy a drink with a meal- it is for an 
alcohol-specific venue. The lack of public transport in the vicinity means that attendees will 
either drive to and from the venue or leave at the end of the evening seeking lifts and taxis 
which are not available locally.  Self-drive party-goers will create a threat from drunk driving 
(recognising of course that most drivers will obey the law but not all will do so, intentionally 
or otherwise), both on the narrow, unlit lane itself, the nearby villages and the A303 
accessed at the end of Wiremead Lane.  
 
For party goers who rely on taxis, there is a clear risk to private property and livestock 
where inebriated attendees are leaving Haydown Farm on foot and going in search of their 
ride, or attempting to walk back into town. Haydown Farm is surrounded by arable crops but 
also cattle, horses and chickens, vulnerable to disturbance, litter and gates left open. This is 
not about flora and fauna but protection of property.  
 
Threat to public safety 
Wiremead Lane is narrow, unlit and has no pavement. The vehicle access lane to Haydown 
Farm has a bend on one side and a narrow bridge on the other over Pilhill Brook. Drivers 
leaving Haydown Farm who have been drinking will be tested by this route and pose a 
threat to themselves and others driving or walking along the lane. The lack of public 
transport to this locality will mean that a majority of attendees will rely on lifts and taxis, 
which are not available locally and will have to be called out from Andover. Mobile phone 
signal coverage is limited on Wiremead Lane so those seeking taxis will likely start walking 
along the lane. In safety terms, this is a bad combination with a raised volume of traffic 
along an unlit, narrow and twisting lane. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 86

https://www.testvalley.gov.uk/business/licensingandregulation/licensing/adviceinformation/current-consulttions?displaypref=large-contrast
https://www.testvalley.gov.uk/business/licensingandregulation/licensing/adviceinformation/current-consulttions?displaypref=large-contrast


 
Potential public nuisance 
This is a quiet residential lane unsuited to regular late-night revellers. The lane is not well 
adapted for significant traffic, and there will be intolerable nuisance to those living along 
Wiremead Land and through the Pilhill Brook valley. There are no public toilets or changing 
rooms. Late night party goers walking along the lane will invade residents’ privacy and 
breach the quiet and peaceful nature of this lane. Noise from parties, music, and vehicles 
will be a nuisance to local residents; if this is permitted for several consecutive evenings 
every week, every public holiday and weekend and in the fortnight approaching every 
Christmas this is an intolerable degradation of quality of life for East Cholderton residents. 
  
Proportionality 
There is no requirement in this Conservation Area for an expanded late-night economy; the 
village is already served by two public houses. Attendees at these events are most unlikely 
to be local residents, and the nuisance and harm caused to local people will be far out of 
proportion to the benefits of hosting this venue.  
 
Claudia Moesel 
Upper Haydown Cottage  
Wiremead Lane  
East Cholderton 
 
 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 87



Dear Mr White,  
 
I am making this representation/ objection to the above requested licensing.The basis for 
this being, that granting the licence will impact on the licensing objectives.  
 
Public safety and protection of children.  
 
This proposed brewery is on a working farm, where four footpaths meet. They are well used 
by locals. I have cattle in the barn meters away, so I am there early in the morning till 
sometimes, late at night. I see many people at all times using these paths, before and after 
dark. There is no lighting. If turning left or right, the line of vision is obscured. With the 
increase in traffic, it is only a matter of time before a dog, child or walker, has an accident. 
This is still a working farm and todays very large machinery uses these paths. They do not 
stop quickly or easily.  
The above mentioned machinery, is parked inside and outside of the barn where my cattle 
are over wintered. The barn is easily accessible. Unsupervised children will find it a 
wonderful, exciting playground. Farm machinery to climb on and roof high stacks of straw 
and silage bales. It is only natural for children to explore, while parents have a drink or a 
coffee. What if a child fell from the silage stack to the concrete floor, or a stack of straw 
bales collapsed? 
I gain entrance to the actual cows by squeezing through the tombstone feed rail. A child 
would not have to squeeze. Young calves are very tempting but a cow and new calf can be 
more dangerous than a bull.  
The straw in the barn is also a fire risk as are, the corn or stubble fields surrounding the 
yard. A carelessly discarded cigarette after a drink could cause untold damage. 
 
Crime and disorder.  
 
The farm has suffered a lot of thefts in recent years. Batteries from tractors and fencing 
units, drums of oil and fencing stacks to name a few. There is caravan storage behind the 
barn. Many attempts, some successful, have been made to steal these, resorting in 
damage. 
This proposed brewery, gives people the opportunity to walk around the barns 
unquestioned. Allowing them to assess what is there and ways around security. At present 
those of us who use the yard regularly, take note of any unknown cars or people. With this 
brewery, we will have no clue as to who should or shouldn't be there. 
The farm also has a lot of trouble with what is basically fly tipping. We have gathered 
together a large pile of rubbish including washing machines and mattresses that have been 
dumped in and around the yard. 
A metal skip was placed outside to clear the rubbish but was quickly filled before much of 
the farm scrap could be put in. Within days of it being removed another pile of scrap has 
appeared.  
This will become much worse if more and more people visit the farm and see things can be 
dumped. 
 
Public nuisance.  
 
There are many houses and a static caravan site very close to this proposed brewery. Most 
people bought these homes for the quiet peaceful area they are in at present. This 
proposed brewery will bring noise and disruption and an increase in traffic. Wiremead Lane 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 88



is single track with already poorly maintained passing places, full of potholes. It has several 
bad bends but, in places, has a sixty mile per hour speed limit. It is unsuitable for the extra 
traffic this will bring. 
The caravan park and some of the houses can be accessed from the farm. This leaves 
them open to theft for the same reasons as the farm itself. 
 
In a village meeting Breach Farm Brewing Ltd, stated that they had made mistakes on their 
application to you with the hours requested. They have also publicly announced this on the 
village Facebook page. Surely they should submit a second application with the correct 
hours. They refuse to confirm or deny if they would apply for any extension in hours on 
special occasions such as New Years Eve. They refused to say if a cafe would be put in 
place but in the parish magazine it has been stated that it would. 
The villages already have two public houses with lovely gardens to sit in. 
This establishment will bring nothing to the area other than noise, traffic and disturbance to 
a peaceful, beautiful spot  
I am asking you refuse the application, advising that consumption of alcoholism not allowed 
on these premises nor promotional events.  
  Yours  
  Faithfully 
   Mr and Mrs May 
      
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 89



31st August 2021 

 
Dear Mr White, 

 
Representation re. Licensing Application for Breach Farm Brewing Ltd/ Annex, Haydown Farm, East 

Cholderton 
 
East Cholderton is a small linear rural hamlet in North West Hampshire comprising 22 residential properties on 

Wiremead Lane, two farms and Elmstead Park which comprises 40 residential static caravans and a brick built 

residence. 
 
The hamlet has two access approaches into Wiremead Lane - these are the A303 East and Westbound carriageway 

slip roads/the roads from Thruxton and Weyhill, and the unclassified road from Amport. The majority of Wiremead 

Lane is a single track road with ‘improvised’ passing places. ‘Improvised’ should be taken as meaning they are 

either entrances to properties, parts of the road that have experienced ‘forced erosion’ from vehicles, access roads 

to the two farms or lanes/byways that lead off Wiremead Lane. 
 
Haydown farmhouse and agricultural buildings are set back from Wiremead Lane. They are accessed by a loose 

stone road which runs past residential properties, stables, and large open fields. Haydown Farm is a fully 

operational agricultural business run by a tenant farmer. 
There are a network of footpaths/byways leading all directions which are sometimes uneven, overgrown, unlit and 

present dangers at night to anyone not familiar with them. 
 
The proposed Annex (unbuilt at the time of writing this representation) sits adjacent to Haydown Farmhouse 

(which is a fully operational agricultural site) on a staggered crossroads of public-access byways which serve not 

only the agricultural machinery belonging to the tenant farmer, but also a number of small buildings (currently let 

out as storage units), a caravan/motorhome storage facility, and pedestrians, horses and cyclists. There are a 

number of large, exposed farm buildings which sit both opposite and behind the proposed Annex development. The 

building directly opposite the Annex is in poor condition with many means of unprotected access to its interior. 

OBJECTIONS as follow; 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY 
 

 As well as the aforementioned, Wiremead Lane has a very dangerous pinch point at the Northern end 

between Ladysfield and Brooklands which enables thoroughfare by vehicles alone with absolutely NO 

room to share with pedestrians, cyclists or horses. It has steep banks which allow no safe retreat for 

walkers or riders should vehicles speed through the pinch point (as they frequently do). 
 

 The lane is totally unlit in both directions from the Haydown Farm point of entry. The farm road itself is 

totally unlit and can only be considered as ‘in very poor condition’. It is pitted and potholed for the 

majority of its length, and at the point it meets access to the farmhouse it suffers from severe subsidence 

rendering it difficult to drive a standard vehicle (e.g., saloon car) over. 
 

 The access road is shared by pedestrians, cyclists and horse riders (as well as any other motorised 

vehicles). In order for motorised vehicles to travel safely up the access road they are required to swerve to 

avoid the obstacles mentioned above, thus creating a major safety risk to others using the road. 
 
PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM 
 

 The license Applicant intends to serve ‘strong’ alcohol on and off the premises with the facility to sit 

outside with tables and chairs for customers to consume the alcohol brewed on the premises. 
 

 The above mentioned Public Safety concerns (including the aforementioned day-to-day agricultural 

machinery movements, storage access road movements, exposed farm buildings, 24hr access to the 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 90



caravan /motorhome storage) present obvious dangers to children who are accompanied by adults 

consuming ‘strong’ alcohol on the premises. 
 

 The above concerns are compounded by the fact that there are two large arable fields adjacent to, and 

opposite the Annex which are completely exposed without any protective barriers such as fencing, natural 

hedge or gates. These fields often rotate tall crops (including wheat crops) which are a natural magnet for 

children to go and explore. This presents not only the obvious danger of an ‘unsupervised’ child losing its 

way, but also the risk of mortality through the farmer’s entitled use of heavy agricultural machinery. A 

large unfenced outdoor swimming pool is also situated close to the Annex in the garden of Haydown Farm, 

which can be freely accessed without any barriers. 
 

 
PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER 
 

 East Cholderton has been subjected to many forms of theft crime over the years (partly due to its easy 

access to the A303 trunk road). There has been an increased effort by local residents to make the village 

more secure by means of a Neighbourhood Watch scheme coupled with communication through social 

media. The landowner of Haydown Farm has himself been subjected to many criminal activities due to 

easy access and general lack of security. Caravans and motorhomes in the storage facility are subjected to 

break-ins, thefts and vandalism on a regular basis. Lockable gates were recently constructed at the 

Wiremead Lane end of the the farm track to kerb the flow into the farm and security cameras were recently 

installed in the caravan/motorhome storage compound along with lockable rising bollards. This effort has 

already proved ineffective as there has been a recent attempt to remove the rising bollards. The increase in 

unknown visitors (which is likely to occur) upon opening a nano brewery will only serve to exacerbate the 

problem. 
 
PUBLIC NUISANCE 
 

 BFB are intending to brew and sell beers that are of a high alcohol level. The sale of such beer in 

unrestricted quantity on site is inevitably going to lead to alcohol induced behavioural issues which will 

spill onto the road of East Cholderton. The Brewery’s ethos is to encourage people to walk or cycle to its 

site. This will obviously create many possible public nuisance scenarios to the hamlet. There are no public 

transport routes and the Thruxton Race Circuit is a realistic walk for potential customers of the brewery. 

This will potentially lead to alcohol related noise and antisocial behaviour during late night hours. This 

will no doubt affect many residents of East Cholderton. It is also stated in the Application (Section E) 

under  ‘Will the performance of live music take place indoors or outdoors or both’, ‘Both’ has been 

selected by the applicant. This will present noise pollution issues to the hamlet, especially to those 

residents who live in close proximity to the site. 
 
NEXT STAGE 
 
East Cholderton falls under the Parish of Amport. However, the hamlet has its defined boundaries and this 

should be considered in any applications made relating to, and within its boundaries. Therefore, any 

representations from other villages in the Amport Parish should not be considered before assessing the views and 

opinions of the geographically defined ‘local residents’ of the hamlet of East Cholderton alone. 
 
There have been no plans or drawings of the proposed nano brewery presented (certainly none that are available for 

public scrutiny). This morning I received a copy of the Amport Parish Magazine which features an article written 

by one of the Applicants wives which implies that the project is done and dusted (with no local consultation). 
 
Representatives for BFB Ltd declared at the East Cholderton meeting at the Scout Hall on Saturday 28th that all 

planning considerations had been covered as it is considered ‘permitted development’. I would like clarity from the 

TVBC planning authority that all of the necessary planning steps, along with all associated risk assessments 

(including those required to obtain full Public Liability Insurance) have been carried out. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 91



Because of the above facts, the issuing of any sort of license at this stage would appear highly irresponsible without 

all of the above concerns being addressed in the first instance. The site of Haydown Farm, as it stands, is a highly 

inappropriate site for a fully licensed, or indeed a restricted licensed establishment to trade. 
 
Because of the opinions expressed above I have CCd this representation email to the relevant Planning, Health & 

Safety and other related departments for clarification. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Tim Redpath GRNCM PPRNCM(ens.dist.) 
Guyatt Cottage 
Wiremead Lane 
East Cholderton 
Hasmpshire 
SP11 8LR 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 92



To whom it may concern 
I would like to submit an OBJECTION regarding the above application for all the reasons 
noted below: 
PUBLIC SAFETY 
Wiremead Lane is what could only be called a single track road with very few vehicular 
passing points or refuge places for cyclists, pedestrians, horseriders and dog walkers. In 
the absence of street lighting, especially in the winter months, the increase of vehicles 
would pose an extreme danger to the pedestrians as well as private vehicle motorists and 
taxis and minibuses. 
PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM 
Haydown Farm is a functioning agricultural farm with heavy farm machinery present which 
would be used extensively through the harvest and sowing periods, often late into the 
evening 7 days a week.  The machinery is stored adjacent to the proposed brewery site 
posing a very great risk to humans, particularly children, who would no doubt be 
accompanying their parents whilst visiting the brewery.  The beer is very strong and would 
greatly impair anyones parenting ability if consumed in quantity. 
CRIME AND DISORDER 
The proposed brewery site has already experienced theft and break-ins.  We feel very 
strongly that by opening the site up to many more people this would only increase and 
attract opportunists to our tranquil hamlet.  Our home, Downfield, lies up a single 
track/footpath which leads directly to Haydown Farm.  This does not however have 
vehicular access to the farm so visitors to the potential brewery site would input the address 
into their SATNAV and find themselves at a dead end outside our property, with next to no 
ability to turn around without entering onto our private property.  We would like to point out 
that the brewery has in its promotional material been encouraging visitors to cycle to the 
site. It must be pointed out that under the Licensing Act of 1872 and Road Traffic Act of 
1988 it is illegal to ride a bicycle on a road or other public place whilst under the influence of 
alcohol!!!! 
PUBLIC NUISANCE 
With increased public footfall through the hamlet, and past our property, there will 
undoubtedly be increased noise from alcohol fuelled revellers. Along with the noise there 
would obviously be a problem with urination in the lane, and surrounding area.  It has been 
noted that the brewery plans to have music both indoors and out. This noise would most 
definitely travel and be incredibly disruptive given the hours that the brewery would like to 
be open, ie until 2330, to service drinking customers. 
LIGHT POLLUTION 
There will undoubtedly be flood lighting for the car park and road leading up to the 
proposed site causing light pollution to East Cholderton and surrounding areas rural, dark 
night skies.  There are no streetlights in the hamlet.   
 
To sum up, whilst we do not disagree to the nano brewery functioning as such on this 
proposed site, we are objecting profusely to the sale and moreover the consumption of 
alcohol past regular trading hours 0900-1700hrs. 
 
Sincerely 
Julia Roe & Kelvin Helsdown 
Downfield, Wiremead Lane 
East Cholderton 
Hants. SP11 8LR 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 93



Dear Sir 

 
We are writing to object to the grant of a Premises Licence to Breach Farm Brewing Ltd at 
Haydown Farm, Wiremead Lane, East Cholderton, Andover, Hampshire SP11 8LR.   
 
The grounds of our objection relate to the nature and scale of the proposed activity in what 
is a peaceful, rural area. 
 
We are not aware of any planning application for change of use from the current agricultural 
use which would have enabled the following important matters to be considered by Test 
Valley Borough Council with input from Amport Parish Council and local residents: 
 

1. Noise and light pollution affecting neighbouring properties late into the night for 365 
days per year as detailed in the application. 

2. Increase in traffic and parking provision and the effect this may have on residents of 
East Cholderton and the safety of walkers on public footpaths which run along most 
of the access road and through the farmyard.  

3. The effect of noise and light pollution on local wildlife, particularly owls and bats, 
given the late hours of operation in a rural location.  

4. Whilst commercial use of redundant agricultural buildings is not unusual, the nature 
of this operation appears to be open-ended in that it is proposed to extend beyond 
the commercial production of beer and appears more in the nature of a public 
entertainment venue unconstrained by any planning consent. 

 
We would ask that you bear these points in mind when considering whether to grant a 
Premises Licence. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
Dominic Mills 
 
On behalf of D, MG & GE Mills 
Elmstead Farm 
Wiremead Lane 
East Cholderton 
Andover 
Hampshire 
SP11 8LR 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 94



Mrs M. C & Mr P O’Hare 
Wiremead, East Cholderton, Hampshire SP11 8LR 

Mr Michael White 
Licencing Manager 
Legal and Democratic Service 
Test Valley Borough Council 
Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road 
Andover SP10 3AJ 
 
Dear Mr White, 

 
Premises Licence application: Breach Farm Brewing Limited, Haydown 
Farm, Wiremead Lane, East Cholderton, Andover SP11 8LR 
 
We are writing to lodge our objection to the granting of the above-mentioned premises 
licence. 
East Cholderton is a small and quiet hamlet, located in a conservation area, situated 
between Thruxton and Amport. It has around two dozen houses plus similar quantity of 
mobile homes at Elmstead Caravan Park. All are situated off Wiremead Lane, which is a 
narrow rural lane, with passing places in some stretches. There are no streetlights, very 
little sound pollution in the area and many of the residents are elderly. 
We strongly believe this licence will have a massive detrimental impact on our community in 
terms of crime and disorder, public safety, nuisance and protection of children. 
Crime and disorder 
• Due to some instances of theft of equipment and damage to the area, the farmer 
has recently installed gates on the lane and cctv cameras by the motorhome storage 
area. Having constant footfall up and down the Haydown Farm track will significantly 
increase opportunistic theft and damage to property (farm machinery and 
motorhomes stored at the farm) and animals at the farm and adjacent properties. 
• A commitment to zero tolerance with regard to drugs and discouraging drink driving 
will not in our view prevent crime and disorder from the brewery’s customers or 
from additional members of the public, who will now be able to freely enter the 
farm, fields and motorhome storage site. 
Public safety 
• The barn is part of a working farm, with three footpaths converging at the site of the 
proposed brewery. At present this is used by local walkers, dogwalkers, cyclists, riders, runners, 
motorhome owners and the tenant farmer operating large farm 
machinery. 
It is not designed to have constant traffic (pedestrian and vehicular) to and from a 
“tourist attraction with brewery tours, guided beer tastings and brew-day 
experiences” (per Policy LE18 Tourism in their business plan). Visibility is poor when 
reaching the barn area -worse at night, as there is no lighting (and we’d like to keep 
it that way), and the farm track is not safe for heavy usage. Therefore we believe this 
will pose a Health and Safety risk. 
• The café/ bar selling alcohol and open to the public for around 14 hours each day will 
present a fire risk. All that’s needed is a cigarette butt to be carelessly discarded 
onto the crops or barn full of hay and a fire could start. Bearing in mind the number 
of thatched cottages in the area, this is a massive concern. Needless to say, if a fire 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 95



pit or fireworks were used, this risk would increase considerably. 
• The turnoff from the track onto Wiremead Lane has very poor visibility and more 
vehicular traffic will significantly increase the risk of accidents. 
• Wiremead Lane is very narrow and, specially on the stretches where it narrows 
down even further, there isn’t much space for pedestrians. Again, the increased 
traffic from brewery customers, deliveries, etc, will increase danger of accidents 
even more. 
• For many years East Cholderton has had severe water table and sewer leakage 
issues, still not properly addressed by Southern Water. We would have serious 
concerns if the volume and content of effluents from the brewery could worsen the 
problem. 
Public Nuisance 
• Live music inside and outside the premises from 9AM till 9 or 11 PM, does not fit in 
with the environment of a quiet hamlet in a conservation area and will have a 
negative impact on local residents, specially those living within a short distance to 
the barn. This will also have an impact on the farm animals, horses and local wildlife. 
• Wiremead Lane is a very small country lane, with no street lighting and some very 
narrow stretches which, even with existing traffic, can be challenging. With the 
potential increased usage this will be a big nuisance for the local residents of East 
Cholderton walking up and down the lane and will increase the risk of traffic 
accidents. The consumption of alcohol at the premises is also likely to result in anti-social 
behaviour and noise. Although the licence application states “venue is located off 
the highway, with no residential properties nearby except Haydown Farmhouse 
itself”, not only this will impact the resident of Haydown Farmhouse but also the 
three properties located up the footpath behind the farmhouse, some of the 
properties at Elmstead Park as well as those located on Wiremead Lane, by the 
footpath. 
• There is likely to be nuisance from litter (discarded cans and bottles), which is not in 
keeping with the environment enjoyed by walkers and runners on the footpaths 
running alongside the proposed site. This will be to the detriment of local residents 
enjoying the footpaths around the farm. 
Protection of children 
• Many families walk the footpaths, and children will be endangered by regular traffic 
running up and down Wiremead Lane and the path leading to the site. 
• Children accompanying brewery customers will be unsafe in an unfamiliar 
environment, which is a working farm, containing farm machinery. The proposed site 
is adjacent to accessible farm outbuildings with potential hazards and very close to a 
residential swimming pool with no fenced-in safety. 
• Having outside seating for customers is inappropriate and dangerous in this location, 
where three footpaths converge and farm machinery is operated. 
In light of the reasons stated above we believe the application is flawed and inappropriate 
and the granting of licence should not proceed. 
Please can you keep us informed of the progress of this application. 
Yours sincerely 
Mr & Mrs Paul O’Hare 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 96



Dear Mr White,  

Premises Licence application: Breach Farm Brewing Limited, Haydown  Farm, 

Wiremead Lane, East Cholderton, Andover SP11 8LR 

 

I have been made aware of an application by Breach Farm Brewery for a license to sell alcohol on 

and off their premises at Haydown Farm, Wiremead Lane, East Cholderton and I wish to register my 

opposition to this application. 

  

As a note of background, Wiremead Lane is a quiet residential lane in a rural setting on the edge of 

Amport civil parish.  The lane is narrow, unlit and unpavemented.  Haydown Farm is set back from 

Wiremead Lane but can only be accessed from it. There is very little public transport to the area 

during the day and none in the evenings. These facts are relevant because they help explain the 

impact the proposed brewery and events venue will likely have on the area. 

 

My concerns about this application are focused on these four areas:  

 Potential for crime and disorder 

 Threat to public safety 

 Public nuisance 

 Threat to child safety 
arising from alcohol consumption and especially late-night drinking events in this locality. 

 

Potential for crime and disorder 
The proposal is not for a pub-restaurant where diners enjoy a drink with a meal- it is for an alcohol-

specific venue. The lack of public transport in the vicinity means that attendees will either drive to 

and from the venue or leave at the end of the evening seeking lifts and taxis which are not available 

locally.  Self-drive drinkers will create a threat from drunk driving (recognising of course that most 

drivers will obey the law but not all will do so, intentionally or otherwise), both on the narrow, unlit 

lane itself, the nearby villages and the A303 accessed at the end of Wiremead Lane.  

 
For customers who rely on taxis, there is a clear risk to private property and livestock where 

inebriated attendees are leaving Haydown Farm on foot and going in search of their ride, or 

attempting to walk back into town. Haydown Farm is surrounded by arable crops but also cattle, 

horses and chickens, vulnerable to disturbance, litter and gates left open. This is not about flora and 

fauna but protection of property. It is noted that there have in the past been several incidences of 

crime up and the farm and to the surrounding properties. 

 
Threat to public safety 
As mentioned, Wiremead Lane is narrow, unlit and has no pavement. The vehicle access lane to 

Haydown Farm has a bend on one side and a narrow bridge on the other over Pilhill Brook. Drivers 

leaving Haydown Farm who have been drinking will be tested by this route and pose a threat to 

themselves and others driving or walking along the lane. The lack of public transport to this locality 

will mean that a majority of attendees will rely on lifts and taxis, which are not available locally and 

will have to be called out from Andover. Mobile phone signal coverage is weak on Wiremead Lane 

so those seeking taxis will likely start walking along the lane. In safety terms, this is a bad 

combination with a raised volume of traffic along an unlit, narrow and twisting lane.  In addition it is 

noted that the position of this venue is on a popular footpath, young children frequently use this path 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 97



including the local school, there is a concern that the children could be exposed to additional risk 

from customers. 

 
Potential public nuisance 
This is an extremely quiet residential lane unsuited to regular late-night revellers. The lane is not 

well adapted for significant traffic, and there will be intolerable nuisance to those living along 

Wiremead Land and through the Pilhill Brook valley. There are no public toilets. Drinkers walking 

along the lane or indeed just at the locations will invade residents’ privacy and breach the quiet and 

peaceful nature of this lane and community. Noise from any functions or just increased footfall on 

the footpaths will be intolerable.  In addition there will be light pollution from any events.  In this 

rural community light and noise travel hugely, testament that we can hear the church bells from 

Amport every Friday evening. 

 
I look forward to hearing from you on this matter and would be grateful if you could let me know of 

any progress. 

 
Kind regards 

 
Annabel Acloque 

Mulberry House 

Wiremead Lane 

East Cholderton 

Andover SP11 8LR 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 98



Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 99



Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 100



Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 101



Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 102



Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 103



Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 104



Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 105



 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 106



 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 107



ANNEX 5 

My family and I had the pleasure of being neighbours to Tim and Lori for a couple of years before 

they moved to Amport.  During this time we became friends and we invited them to our 

wedding.  At the same time we set up a business together and converted an old shed on the farm 

into a taproom.  We did monthly events which were well supported by the local community.  Tim 

had an energy which was well received by the village and surrounding area.  Our evenings in the 

taproom created a much needed buzz and enabled people to get together in a good 

atmosphere.  My wife and I have now taken the business forward and are building a brewery and 

taproom on the farm and plan to recreate the enjoyable nights we all had with Breach Farm 

Brewing, however one thing we will miss is Tim's energy and great beer. 

 

Tim is a brilliant brewer and I have not yet tasted beer locally that can match the quality of what he 

produces.  We are excited for his new venture and he only comes from a positive place and there is 

absolutely nothing to worry about and I stand by these words.  I would welcome the opportunity to 

meet or talk with anyone that has any concerns, I have told Tim that he is welcome to share my 

email and telephone number. 

 

Many thanks, 

 

Andrew Ferguson 

Dummer Down Farm 

Hampshire 

RG25 2AR 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 108



Dear Mr White  

I would like to support the application for  Breach Farm Brewing and its licence 

application.  

This is a small micro brewery venture and as such has been very transparent about 

its intentions and inclusion of the local community in the process of establishing itself 

in East Cholderton.  

All decisions must be evidence based.  

Having a small working local venture on a family run farm will help to prevent and 

deter wanton vandalism and crime by those intent on trespassing on farm land and 

causing damage/theft of farming equipment.  

Monitored and well managed small businesses seek to work with the local 

communities and thus create a place of safety and well being, ensuring that a hub is 

there to encourage public discourse and respect. The suggestion that this would be 

the cause of public nuisance is disrespectful not only to those who live peacefully in 

this community but for those who seek to work with our community.  

Further more, licensing laws are very clear in the UK and all our local licensing 

premises abide by these with good reason. As an employee of HCC (childrens 

services) I am always proud of the standards of care and lengths we go to protect 

our children from harm. There is absolutely no evidence to suggest that this micro 

brewery would fall short of our high standards and the community is very much 

looking forward to supporting this enterprise which has engagement with families at 

the heart and centre of its development.  

 

Kind regards 

Margaret Ellwood  

 

Tilehurst 

Furzedown lane  

Amport /border of East Cholderton  

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 109



Subject: Breach Farm Brewing - FULL SUPPORT 
 
There’s been a lot of bullying and appauling use of social media in our small hamlet of East 
Cholderton over the past few days. 
 
However, contrary to opposition, not everyone is against this enterprise and as a family we 
FULLY SUPPORT this application and the venture. 
 
I live in The Malthouse, East Cholderton and this sounds like a very positive step for building 
the community. 
 
Having been at the meeting on Saturday which Tim explained his concept I’d suggest some 
good security would be in order.  The main complaint seemed to be that there’s quite a bit 
of crime at Haydown Farm, more security and more thought on "how the ensure that the 
public are kept away from the livestock?", because at present access to the livestock is quite 
easy. 
 
Regards. 
 
Lisa Cook 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 110



With reference to the licence application for Breach Farm Brewery at Haydown Farm East 
Cholderton we would like to add our support for this venture. Tim Hartigan is a community 
minded man who has thrown himself into the life of the Parish, his venture is more evidence 
of this too. Breathing life into an underused Farmyard and bringing a spark of life to us all. 
Tim supported our community events that we ran during Covid times which were greatly 
appreciated by people who had spent so much time in isolation. This builds on that 
community spirit which has been lost in recent times. There have been one or two really 
nasty villagers who have been running a campaign on Facebook against Tim but that 
sentiment is not held by most of the local villagers!! 
Regards  
 
 
 
Diana and Tony Darbyshire 
5 Sarson Close  
Amport  
SP11 8AB  
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 111



I would like to comment on this ongoing application for a Premises Licence for Breach Farm 

Brewery at Haydown Barn, Wiremead Lane, East Cholderton. 

 

We fully support this enterprise and agree that a License should be granted.  The new 

nano brewery is very small scale, but is a real asset for Amport Parish supporting community 

spirit, and the tasting room is an important part of this.  The site will also provide an 

amenity space for local people to use, and benefit walkers with the provision of WC 

facilities, and the opportunity for a refreshment four afternoons a week. 

 

I realise the hours stated on the original application are being revised to shorter hours on 

Thursday to Sunday afternoons / early evening, finishing up at 9pm at the latest.  The scale 

of the brewery and tasting room makes me confident that this will not present a public 

nuisance in any way, and there are no issues relating to crime and disorder, public safety or 

the protection of children from harm. 

 

Martin & Sally Baker. 

 

Kind regards, 

Martin Baker 

 

Oak House 

Furzedown Lane 

Amport 

Andover 

Hampshire SP11 8BW 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 112



Dear Tim 

I continue to support the Breach Farm Brewing venture, based at Haydown Farm. 

I am glad to hear of the warm support you have from many, and regret the unnecessarily 

hostile reactions which have come your way from a minority.   

The micro-brewery will bring delight to many a connoisseur, and a retail outlet available in 

limited hours sounds a helpful and sensible commercial extra. 

Let us hope that like childbirth, the process is quickly forgotten in the delight of the 

outcome. 

Blessings 

Matthew 

 

 

Rev Matthew Grayshon 

The Vicarage, Amport, Andover, Hants, SP11 8BE 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 113



Dear Mr White 

 

I would like to write offering my support for the Breach Farm Brewery being proposed. I believe this 

is a fantastic opportunity to develop small businesses within the local community, working with the 

community to support local charities, provide employment and another diversification to current 

community areas. A Nano-brewery adds another level of interest to our community adding value to 

the area, bringing visitors, revenue,  more importantly diversity to what we offer in Hampshire, a 

place I am proud to call my home for 40 years. Seeing small businesses pop up through passion and 

interest, should be applauded. 

 

The Brewery can provide education to local schools, sell local produce but most importantly 

showcase the talents that we have in the area. Tim and the team are working to be environmentally 

friendly, support Simon Cheshire in maintain the surrounding areas, which can only enhance the 

beauty of East Cholderton and the avenue of trees due to be planted.  How wonderful to see areas 

being rejuvenated while still protecting the environment and the community around, after such a 

hard 2 years.  Tim met with the locals, outlined plans, and clearly defined his objectives. This to me is 

incredibly refreshing when many businesses do not and will have pop up events that do impact 

significantly on residence without any consideration.  

 

I know that there have been objections, however, I do believe these to be short sighted. Traffic will 

be minimal due to people coming in singular cars or even walking, due to the desire to consume 

alcohol. I also believe that the size of production would only allow 30 pints of beer per day. This also 

includes retail sales, and hope that local business can add to the wonderful local business that can 

only bring high end consumers to the surrounding areas.  

 

I can only hope that this application is approved and applauded for the correct endeavours it is 

trying to achieve by individuals who are welcomed and thanked already for their active contribution 

to the community as neighbours and friends.  

 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if I can add further support.  

 

I look forward to hearing good news.  

 

Regards and Thanks  

 

Amy and Mark Barrett 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 114



Dear Mr White, 

I wanted to send you a brief email in support of Tim Hartigan, Breech Farm Brewing and the 

amended licencing times that Tim has now suggested of four days a week and  the very limited hours 

of opening for Breech Farm Brewing at Haydown Farm following his local consultation on Saturday 

29th August 2021. 

I see the set up proposed by Tim would be beneficial to him by offering a private and secure setting 

that would not attract unwelcome attention from undesirable element  due to its positioning; I 

also  strongly believe that due to its scale it will never be a threat to the other residents and 

businesses of the farm or the local area but I actually see it as another set of eyes enhancing the 

security of the vicinity.  Tim’s presentation demonstrating limited access with a drive to ensure foot 

fall rather than motorised vehicular traffic is excellent demonstration of forward thinking  to 

sustainability and being carbon neutral for the potential customers of his brewery. 

The licencing times are short and the number of days open would attract people with a passion for 

craft beer to attend and will be happy to sample, taste and purchase limited quantities of beer, it is 

not as far as I can see attractive to those intent on high quantity consumption and purchase of cheap 

beverage.  

Having this “nano” brewery as a local meeting point,  I do see this as an excellent way of enhancing 

the community communication, bringing many people from different walks of life together to 

appreciate high quality local products and potentially will enhance their community spirit and 

community creativity. 

I welcome the opportunity for a small community room as suggested; as like Tim I am a small 

business owner and would welcome the chance to use the Community Room to have small one off 

catch ups with other self employed small traders from the local area in a setting that is conducive to 

business ideas. 

I do hope my support of Tim’s application is beneficial and happy to discuss with you should you 

wish 

 

Yours sincerely  

Rob Jones 

Patches  

The Green 

Amport 

SP11 8BA 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 115



Good morning Michael, 

 

I understand that a license application is being made for a small brewery and tap house at Haydown 

Farm under the name of Breach Farm Brewing. I would like to register my support for this venture 

highlighting my opinion that it would be a positive addition to the local community and offer 

something that is different to many villages in the country. I would differentiate a brewery and tap 

house from a public house and the different roles they play. In addition, I feel that the location 

would be very suitable given the low volumes of people and traffic that a small brewery and tap 

house would attract, and therefore the low impact it would have on the immediate area. 

 

For the purposes of registering my support I include my details below. 

 

Kingsley Harding 

8 Sarson Close 

Amport 

Andover 

SP11 8AB 

 

Regards, 

 

Kingsley 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 116



Ref Breach Farm Brewing Limited, Haydown Farm, East Cholderton, Andover, SP11 8LR 

Dear Sir 

 

I wish to support Breach Farm Brewing's application for a Premises Licence at Haydown Farm, East 

Cholderton 

 

As a previous regular supporter of the Breach Farm Brewery tasting room at Dummer Down Farm, I 

am delighted to hear that they are now setting up in premises in East Cholderton. This will be so 

much closer to where I live in Hatherden. I will now be able to cycle over when I wish to visit their 

tasting room and purchase supplies of their locally-produced beer. 

 

It is vitally important that we support new business ventures. As a small business owner in the Test 

Valley for the past 20+ years, I really do appreciate the need to help other local businesses get 

started as this can be a very stressful undertaking. 

 

I recall that the evenings we had at Dummer Down Farm were well managed by Mr Timothy 

Hartigan, in a safe and respectful manner. They met a community need by bringing people together, 

and caused a nuisance to no one. Clearly, the small number of people in attendance were fully 

respective of all laws relating to the consumption of alcoholic beverages. I am sure Mr Hartigan will 

operate his business in this new location in a similar manner and I wish him well. 

 

Yours faithfully  

 

 

Matthew Morton  

Director 

 

 

 

 

2-3 Dines Cottages - Hatherden - Andover - SP11 0HU 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 117



Dear Sirs 

 

I wanted to write to give my full support to this licensing application as it is really good to see new 

small businesses opening up – especially after Covid.   

 

We are of the opinion that, not only will the Brewery be attractive to the locals, it will also help to 

bring small scale work to the area – something which we are desperately short of.   

 

We live in Palestine, and often pass through East Cholderton to get to the North of the A303 and 

think that this will be a great asset for the area as a whole. 

 

Kind regards 

 

Ian Annett 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 118



Dear Sirs 

 

I wish to make it known that I am in support of the Licensing application:  

Breach Farm Brewing Limited, Haydown Farm, Wiremead Lane, East Cholderton, 

Andover SP11 8LR 

 

As a local business owner, interested in the development of amenities to support the local and 

tourist economy, I believe that permitting this licensing application will provide a positive 

contribution to the community. I have witnessed first-hand, the safe, professional, respectful and 

orderly way in which the applicant has organised previous licensed events, held at Dummer Down 

Farm and the Monxton-Amport Village Hall. 

 

Thank you for your consideration of my support. 

 

Best wishes 

Mark Horner  

  

South Downs Sourdough 

The Brick House, Cheriton 

Hampshire 

SO24 0PR 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 119



Dear Mr White  

 

I would like to offer my support for this endeavour currently being purposed. 

During the previous location of the original brewery, I was a regular visitor to the taproom in 

Dummer, along with many of my friends. Naturally I am excited about the prospect of a new 

premises and exciting new beers to try, along with building a new sense of community in the future. 

I have known Mr Hartigan for a few years and have always found him passionate about his brewery 

endeavours, and very open to discuss and show people the "behind the scenes" as it were of the 

brewing business itself. 

Many of us are regular cyclists and I am excited about the promotion of this form of travelling to his 

new brewery as well. 

I believe Mr Hartigan and his associates will bring a definite bonus to the local community, and I wish 

to offer my support towards this new local project! 

 

Thank you for your time. 

 

Kind regards 

 

Richard Smith  

2 fishers Field  

St mary Bourne  

Sp116bh  

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 120



Good afternoon 

 

I would like to comment on the premises application for the above address.  

 

I have known the applicant for some time and have always found him to be trustworthy and 
responsible. I was a regular visitor to the previous licensed premises that he ran until not so 
long ago at Dummer near Basingstoke and found it a great venue and very well managed. 

 

I believe the applicants' ambition is to create a brewing facility and premises that will 
encourage local trade and be an asset to the community. 

 

I have run licensed premises in the past so I appreciate that as a responsible authority you 
need to be sure of those making these applications. However, I have no hesitation in 
recommending this applicant for approval. 

 

For your information, I am also Chairman of St Mary Bourne Parish Council. 

 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if I can be of any further help with this matter. 

 

Kind regards. 

 

David Peart 

 

7 Hirst Copse 

St Mary Bourne  

Andover 

SP11 6ST   

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 121



Dear Mr White, 

 

I, along with my wife, write as a residents of East Cholderton with regard to the application by 

Breach Farm Brewery for a Nano-Brewery at Haydown Farm. 

 

My wife and I would like to register our support for the licensing of brewing premises at the 

farm.  We do not believe that the existence or operation of the brewery will have any negative 

effects on the prevention of crime and disorder, public safety, prevention of public nuisance, and the 

protection of children from harm. 

 

If you wish to contact me directly for any further comments, please do not hesitate to do so. 

 

Kind regards, 

 

Roland Godfrey-Davies 

 

Meadow View 

Wiremead Lane 

East Cholderton 

Andover 

Hampshire 

SP11 8LR 

 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 122



Mr P. Chamberlain  

33 Handel Close 

Brighton Hill 

Basingstoke  

Hampshire 

RG224DJ  

 

Hello. 

          I am writing to you in support of Breach Farm Brewery run by Tim Hartigan. 

I believe he is trying to apply for a licence for his Brewery & Tap Room. 

I have known Tim & his wife Lori for a while now.  

We first met him at church & he is a committed Christian. 

We have followed his Brewery journey from Breach Farm in Dummer to his new venture nr Monxton 

nr Andover. 

Tim and his wife Lori are pleasant and kind professional Christian's and take on board village life.  

They bring a lot to the community and ran the Brewery & Tap Room at Dummer in a friendly 

inclusive manner. 

They made lots of friends there & they continue to have support from the friends they made in 

Dummer and the surrounding area. 

I am sure that if given the opportunity to have the licence, the business will be a real asset to the 

area & the people in the village. 

Yours sincerely, 

Peter Chamberlain  

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 123



 

 

 

Meadowside  •  East Cholderton  •  SP11 8LR  •   

 

Dear Mr Hartigan and partners 

Thank you for your recent letter, outlining the plans you have for some of the empty barn space, at  

Haydown Farm. 

Mow and I have reviewed the document and drawings and believe this is a super proposal, and that 

historically, there have been few business ventures existing or proposed that would have such a 

positive impact on the surrounding community. 

We believe the café and event space will be well patronised by our surrounding villages and that the 

active presence of light industry will bring a level of security to the farm and barns.  

Its great to see a local business making a positive statement, and both of us would like to show our 

full support for your proposal. 

Finally, Good Luck, and please let us know the outcome. 

Sincerely, 

[Your Name] 

[Your Name] 

 

 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 124



Dear Sir,  
I’m writing in regard to the planning application submitted by Breach Farm Brewing.  
I’d like to voice my support for the venture-having experienced a previous incarnation at 
Dummer Down Farm , Basingstoke.  
Tim Hartigan, is knowledgeable, intelligent, interesting & friendly. Breach Farm Brewing 
echoes those characteristics.  
The open days are inclusive, educational, community spirited events providing artisan 
products in a warm welcoming environment.  
 
Yours truly- Andrew Matthews,  
131 Park Prewett Road, Basingstoke. RG24 9RG  
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 125



Mrs N J Chamberlain 

33 Handel Close 

Brighton Hill 

Basingstoke 

Hants 

 

Hello, 

 

This e-mail is being sent in support of the proposed new premises to be licenced by Tim Hartigan for 

beer brewing and tasting by way of a Tap room.  My husband and I have know Tim and Laurie for a 

while now and are fully supportive of their move to new premises. 

 

We have followed Tim’s journey after meeting them at church and have attended many functions 

that he has put on each one done with taste and consideration.   

 

Upon recently moving to a new area and expanding his client base Tim found the need to a nearer to 

home and larger area for his brewing.  Having found a premises at Moxton near Andover his is now 

applying for this to become licenced. 

 

You couldn’t wish to meet a nicer more considerate couple, and am sure upon becoming licenced he 

will be an asset to the surrounding community and his already existing customers and friends, that 

he has made along the way. 

 

We are fully supportive of this new venture and wish him well in all that he does, as it is well 

deserved. 

 

Kind regards 

Nicola Chamberlain 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 126



Dear Mr White, 

 

 

I am writing to you to acknowledge our full support for the Breach Farm Brewing and 

tasting room development. We have seen how passionate Tim is regarding his brewing 

ventures. We have known Tim and his wife for a number of years and have watched him 

develop a highly successful brewing and tasting room in another part of Hampshire. 

Great events were enjoyed by many people from all walks of life and from near and far. 

Many people, us included ,were very sad when Tim moved away and his regular and 

very enjoyable beer tasting evenings were greatly missed by all who attended.  

Tim loves bringing people together and he certainly succeeded in drawing a regular and 

ever increasing crowd to his events that have resulted in firm, long lasting friendships. 

We are both confident that Tim will replicate that same community feel and passion 

amongst the regular guests that attend his proposed brewing and tasting room and have 

no doubt that it will bring the community together and those further afield, just as it has 

done before. 

Thank you for your consideration of this letter 

 

Mark and Sarah Defferding 

 

 

 

5 Gravel Close 

Brown Candover 

Alresford 

Hants 

SO24 9TU 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 127



Dear Michael, 

 

I am sending you this email in relation to a licensing application for Breach Farm Brewing Ltd at 

Haydown Farm, East Cholderton. As a local resident living on Furzedown Lane in Amport, which is in 

very close proximity to the site, I wanted to provide my full and unwavering support for this 

application. I believe the proposal will only benefit the local community, a view I know is supported by 

many other residents. 

 

I have a family with young children and we regularly use the area around Haydown farm for walking. I 

believe the proposal will only enhance the area around the farm and I personally do not believe it 

presents any area's for concern. 

 

I hope are you able to approve the application so that the local community can all benefit from this 

fantastic proposal. 

 

Regards, 

David 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 128



Dear Michael,  
 
Reff: Breach Farm Brewing  
I’d like to take this opportunity to show my support for Breach Farm in their application for 
brew house and tap room.  The previous events Tim held in Dummer were great welcoming 
social occasions bringing both locals to the village and those from a little further together to 
enjoy the unique and characterful beers they brew.  Their community consciousness is at 
the heart of what they do ensuring customers feel more like friends than just there to make 
money.  
 
Whilst the new tap room is further afield for us it’ll give us a great chance to explore a new 
area out on our bikes whilst visiting Breach Farm Brewery and the beer is worth travelling 
for.  
 
I look forward to hearing the outcome of the application and thank you for taking the time 
to consider my comments.  
 
Many thanks  
James Evans 
37 Highwood Ridge  
Basingstoke  
RG22 4UU 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 129



Dear Mr White,  
                           I would like to register my support for Mr Hartigan’s application for a 
premises license enabling  his small brewery to allow customers to try his products on site. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
Guy Tennant Cairns  
 
2 Piccadilly Cottages  
Over Wallop 
Stockbridge 
Hants SO20 8HP   
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 130



Dear Mr White, 

 

I would like to put in some supporting comments regarding Breach Farm Brewing at Haydown Farm. 

 

Firstly, Breach Farm Brewing are a great small business with their aims always focused on supporting 

the local community. They have organised charity beer festivals and fundraising for their current 

community and I'm sure this enthusiasm will continue in their new location. It is important not to 

confuse this venture with a typical 'bar' application, taprooms are far more laid back and will attract 

families, cyclists and hikers and (assuming they are successful) there is the possibility of some 

additional jobs in the area.  

 

Throughout Lockdown they survived by providing a doorstep beer delivery service across North 

Hampshire which was fantastic. Not only the beer but the friendly conversation and advice was 

something to look forward to each week. This is a great opportunity for them to expand their 

operation slightly and provide a nice cafe and taproom for everyone to enjoy. 

 

I hope this application is successful and that Breach Farm are given the chance to prove what a 

valuable asset to the community they can be. 

 

Kind regards 

 

Andy Fenwick 

 

Bramblys Drive, Basingstoke.  

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 131



Dear Mr White, 
 
I would like to offer my support for the licence application for Breach Farm Brewing at 
Haydown Farm in Amport. 
 
I have known Tim Hartigan since he moved to Amport over a year ago. Tim is a community 
minded, responsible and respectable individual. He is very active in our community and has 
already run a number of charitable events in Amport and Monxton. 
 
I have read his proposal and believe it to be entirely consistent with his own personal ethos. 
His commitment to the community is borne out in his desire to contribute brewery profits 
and organise fundraising events as a part of his business. 
 
I believe that Tim will be conscientious and diligent licensee and commend his application. 
 
Warm regards, 
 
Neil Warren. 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 132



Dear Mr White  
 
Please accept this email as my full support for Tim Hartigan’s premises license application 
for  Breach Farm Brewery at Haydown Farm, Amport.  
 
I am supportive of Tim’s ethos around the brewery and his willingness to engage with the 
local community.  
 
Kind regards  
Geraldine  
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 133



Dear Sir/Madam,  

 

We write in support of the above application. My wife and I moved to Amport shortly before 

lockdown so, whilst we are aware of those who have lived here longer who are both in support and 

against this application, we have no strong emotional views. We have got to know the local area 

quite well. We do see this as a small, well considered and beneficial community idea, both with a tap 

room and community space. This would enhance the community spirit and provide another social 

outlet, following the demise of the Black Swan in Monxton some years ago. We also recognise and 

support the need for farmers to diversify the use of their land.  

 

We understand the applicant is reviewing the proposed licensing hours to appease some more local 

residents, which we think is sensible. With careful management and sensible licensing hours we do 

think this would enhance the community. Furthermore, we believe some of the more reticent local 

residents, who are either reluctant to change or have been (in some cases deliberately) mislead with 

regards the scale of the business and intent of the applicants, will also appreciate this in time. 

 

At this time, more than ever the country and its communities need some cohesion and community 

spirit, hence our support for the application. 

 

Yours Sincerely 

 

Richard and Rachel Hick 

 

Richard and Rachel Hick 

Flagons House 

Amport 

Hampshire 

SP11 8AQ 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 134



Dearest Michael 

 

I attended a meeting last week to discuss the application for a Premises Licence for a new 

venture in our local community; Breach Farm Brewery. This is hopefully to be located at 

Haydown Barn, Wiremead Lane in E.Cholderton. 

I wanted to write to express my complete support for this application and agree that a 

Premises License should be granted to the owner Mr Tim Hartigan.  

 

My understanding is that the application is for a proposed micro brewery that although of 

small scale, would be a huge asset to the local community and to the residents who reside 

within the local Parish of Amport. The owner, Tim intends to support community spirit 

through v.low key fundraising events, he reassures us with no music (though I do like a good 

dance or guitar myself so was disappointed to hear this!) with the tap room / tasting room 

plays a key role in this. The new site will boast toilets, a simple but new and I'm sure 

welcomed commodity for the many dog walkers who will pass by it and of course a welcome 

rest to gain a refreshment and enjoy the views of our gorgeous village. 

My understanding is that the hours of trade will be no later that 9pm and 4 days a week 

only....Thursday to Sunday. The simplicity in his proposal and the small scale of his venture 

gives me the greatest of confidence that Breach Farm Brewery Co. can only bring positive 

vibes to our community and in no way present a public nuisance. I do not believe it will raise 

the levels of crime and disorder in the area nor effect public safety or the protection of 

children from harm. I therefore fully look forward to raising a glass with Tim and his team in 

support to hopefully a successful application and new venture. 

 

Many Thanks 

 

Guy Baker 

 
 

  

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 135



Dear Sirs, 
 
Reference:  
Premises Licence 
Haydown Farm, Wiremead Lane, East Cholderton, Andover SP11 8LR ________ 
 
I wish to express my utmost support for this application. 
 
Breach Farm Brewing is a very small producer of a limited range of tasty craft beers each 
with their own distinctive character – a real craft/cottage industry.  
Small low impact enterprises like this add value to the character of our communities where 
traditional crafts such as small scale artisanal brewing help maintain our countryside 
traditions.  
I ask you to grant this application. 
 
John Buckley 
 
9 McFauld Way, Whitchurch, Hampshire, RG28 7LR 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Licensing Sub-Committee - 18 October 2021

Page 136


	Agenda
	4 Licensing Procedure Rules
	LicensingRules
	Text1

	5 Application for a new Premises Licence - Haydown Farm, Wiremead Lane, East Cholderton, Andover SP11 8LR
	Text1
	Haydown Farm Annex 1
	Haydown Farm Annex 2
	Haydown Farm Annex 3
	Haydown Farm Annex 4
	Haydown Farm Annex 5


